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T h u r s d a y , 1 7 October, 1946 

1 

INTERNATIONAL MILITARY TRIBUNAL 
FOR THE FAR EAST 

Court House of the Tribunal 
War Ministry Building 

Tokyo, Japan 

The Tribunal met, pursuant to adjournment, 

at 0930. 

Appearances: 

For the 

For the 

For the 

Tribunal, same as before. 

Prosecution Section, same as before, 

Defense Section, same as before. 

21 

22 

23 

(English to Japanese, Japanese to 

English, Russian to English and Japanese to 

Russian interpretation was made by the 

Language Section, IMTFE... > 

25 



7,936 

G 
r 
e 
6 
n 
b 

B 
a 

n 
9 

1
 2

 3
 

2
 2

 2
 

25 

MARSHAL OF THE COURT: The International 

Military Tribunal for the Far East is now in session. 

THE FRESIDEKT: Mr. Cunningham. 

MR. CUNKINGHAM: If the Trlbtinal please, _ 

yesterday, at the close- of the session, the Russian 

prosecution suggested that they were about to intro-

duce more evidence on the activities in the Eurorean 

theatre. I want to register an objection to any 

further evidence concerning acts, agreeirients, or 

alliances made in the Eurorean theatre unless they 

relate particularly to the defendants In the dock 

and the Japanese alliance. 

I merely want to でoint out that the juris-

diction of this Tribunal extends only to the area 

over which General MacArthur has power, and, there-

fore, any inquiry Into agreements, acts or alliances 

entered into in Europe are beyond the SCODS of in-

quiry of this Tribunal. 

IHE FRESIDE:NT: Your objection is utterly 

foolish. We think you are not addressing us at all; 

you are addressing the m b l i c . 

MR. CUKKIKGHAM: I want to object further 

that the Russian rrosecution's evidence should be 

limited to the specific counts in the Indictment 

which the Russian rrosecution limited, themselves to 
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in their opening statement, to wit --

THE FRESIDEKT; Every defense counsel is in-

sisting on that without saying so, and we understand 

it. You must be content to take objections to spe-

cific evidence as it is tendered and to give your 

reasons, and we will deal with them, 

MR. CUKKIKGKAM: If the Tribunal rlease, it 

is very difficult, sitting do?.’n hc-re, to catch these 

things as they go through in these documonts when they 

go from one back to another and take a raragraph from 

an exhibit that we had last week, and so on. That's 

the reason I am objecting now.. 

THE FRESIDEKT: General Vasiliev. 

GENERAL VASILIEV: I shall read an excerpt 

from the record of RIBBENTROP's talk with IvIATSUOKA on 

March 2 7 , 1 9 4 1 . This document (No. 4005-B) has already 

been presented by me to the Tribunal and received Ex-

hibit No. 783. This excerpt is numbered 2 in the 

English copies of the document submitted to the Tri-

bunal. 

I quote RIBBENTROF'S words: 

"The German armies in the East are available 

at any time. Should Russia one day take up an atti-

tude which could be interpreted as a threat against 

Germany, the Fuehrer would dash Russia to pieces. One 
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is positive in Germany that such a campaign against 

Russia would end in a complete victory for German arms 

and the absolute destruction of the Russian Army and 

the Russian State. The Fuehrer is convinced that in 

case of an advance against the Soviet Union a few 

months later a power (gropmacht) Russia would no longer 

exist." 

After two days on March 2 9 , 1 9 4 1 RIBEENTROP's 

talk with MATSUOKA was resiir.ed, I shall present in 

evidence excerpts from the record of this talk, docu-

ment 527. It will be noted that other excerpts from 

of this talk were presented to the Tribunal 

received exhibit No, 580. 

the record 

before and 
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THE F'RESIDEKT: Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF THE COURT： Frosc-cution's document 

No. 527 will receive exhibit No. 789. 

(Whereupon, the document above 

mentioned was marked rrosecution's exhibit 

No, 789 and received in evidence^) 

GENERAL VASILIEV: I quote Ribbentrop's 

words: 

"The largest part of the German army was 

anyway on the Eastern frontiers of the Reich and f\illy 

prepared to open the attack at any time。 He (the RAM) 

however believed, that Russia would try to avoid de-

velopments leading to war. Should, Germany, however 

enter into a conflict with Russia, the USSR would be 

finished off within a few months. In this case, Japan 

would have, of course, even less reason to be afraid 

than ever, if she wanted to advance on Singapore, 

Consequently, she need not refrain from such an under-

taking beca-u.se of possible fears of Russia. 

"He (the RAM) wanted to point out to MATSUOKA, 

in any case, that a conflict with Russia was anyhow 

within the realm of possilility. In any case, MATSUOKA 

could not report to the Japanese Lraperor, upon his 

return that a conflict between Russia and Germany was 

impossible. On the contrary, the situation was such ‘ 
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that such a conflict, even if it -̂ Neve not probable , 

would have to be considered possible. 

"The R M declared that it was ouite possible 

that the above-mentioned circumstances should very 

soon lead to a conflict between Germany and Russia, 

If Germany felt herself in danger, she would immediately 

strike and finish off bolshevism. 

" M T S U O K A finally agreed to this point of 

view and gave an assurance that Japan would always be 

a loyal ally who would devote herself entirely, and 

not just in a lukewarm w a y , レ the joint effort 
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I shall present in evidence an excerpt from 

the record of Hitler's talk with MATSUOKA in the 

presence of Ribbentrop, Ott, and OSHIMA on March 27, 

1941. It will be noted that other excerpts from 

this document (No. 134-0) were presented to the Tri-

bunal before and received exhibit No. 577. 

MR. FURRESS: If the Tribunal please, the 

way these excerpts were read, it would apnear that 

MATSUOKA agreed to what had just been quoted by the 

prosecutor. As a matter of fact, the docuirisnt indi-

cates that he agreed to something which was outlined • 

a matter which was not quoted by the rrosecutor. The 

record, therefore, will be misleading. And I think, 

to make it clear, the rreceding -- the matter which 

is omitted should bs read, into it. There is also 

considerable other matter which is omitted which is 

indicated by the asterisks on the exhibit. 

THE FRESIDSKT： I do not knov; whether he has 

read all that MATSUOKA was supposed to have said. 

Certainly, the excerpt that he just read does not 

carry out all he undertook to urove. The exhibit 

789 refers to a conversation between Ribbentrop and 

MATSUOKA in March, 1941. General Vasiliev also re-

fers to April, 1941, And the next exccrpt may be on 

that; I do not know. 
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MR. GOLUKSKY: If the Tribunal please, I 

just wanted, to explain that we did not read the other 

parts of this because they were already read by M r , 

Tavenner, 

THE PRESIDENT: I do not recollect the dates 

of the excerpts read by Mr. Tavenner； it was so long 

a的 . 

MR. FURKESS s My point is, it has nothing to 

do with dates, if your Honor please. He quotes the 

last paragraph: "MATSUOKA finally agreed to this 

point of view. “ He omitted the preceding raragrarih, 

so that it appears that he agreed — that MATSUOKA 

agreed to the m r a g r a p h which the prosecutor read, 

which is not a question of time but, in question of 

quotation, is long prior to the final tiling which 

the prosecutor read. 

THE rRESIDEKT: Of course, I am referring 

to what he said yesterday afternoon, which was the 

introduction to the material he has read this morning, 

MR. FURKESS: Then we are referring to dif-

ferent things, apnarently. 

！THE PRESIDENT: Well, now, you could have 

made that objection more intelligible/ Had you said 

he had left out a paragraph which changes the v/hole 

of the meaning, v;e "would have known. But I thought 
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you were referring to the introductory remarks of 

the prosecutor. 

MR. PURKESS: Your Honor stated my point, 

and I regret that エ did not state it more clearly, 

THE FRESIDSKT: General Vasiliev. 

GENERAL VASILIEV: I shall present in 

evidence an excerpt from the record of Hitler's talk 

with MATSUOKA. in the rresence of Ribbentrop, Ott, 

and OSHBiA on March 27, W l . I t will be noted that 

other excerpts from this document (No, 1340) were 

presented to the Tribunal before and received ex-

hibit No, 577. 

THE rRESIDEKT: Admitted on the usual tG-rms. 

CLERK OF THE COURT： Frosecui:ion's document 

No. 1340 will receive exhibit IJo. 790. 

(Whereupon, the docuinent above 

mentioned was marked. rros"-cution-'s exhibit 

No, 790 and received In evidence.) 

GENERAL VASILIEV： I quote。Ji eycerpt on 

page 3 of the English text. Hitler said: 

"On this it should be notcd that Germany has 

made the known treaties with Russia, but still more 

important than this is the fact that Germany has l60 

to ISO divisions at her disposal in case of emergency, 

for her porteation against Russia, In case of this 
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eventuality she (Germany) has, therefore, not the slight-

est fear and would not hesitate for a second to draw 

the consequences at once in case of danger. He，(the 

Fuehrer) however,does not think that this danger will 

occur." 

I continue to quote on page 4 of the English 

text: 

"Japan Is the strongest power in the East 

Asia sphere and Russia could not act since there are 

150 German divisions standing at her Western border." 

On the 4th of April 1941, HITLER had another 

talk with MATSITOKA in the presence of RIBBENTRCP. I 

shall present in evidence excerpts from the record of 

this talk (Doc. No. 532-B). It will be noted that 

other excerpts from the record of this talk were pre-

sented to the Tribunal before in the c u r s e of the 

other phase of the trial and received exhibit No, 582, 
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THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF IKE COURT: Prosecution's document 

No, 532-B will receive exhibit No. 791. 

(Whereupon, the document above 

mentioned was marked prosecution's exhibit 

No. 791 and received in evidence.) 

GENERAL VASILIEV: I quote: 

"Then MATSTJOKA reported on his conversations 

with Duce and the Pope. With Duce he had had a gene-

ral conversation on the state of Europe and the war 

and on the relations between Italy and Germany, as 

well as on the future development of the world. 

"Finally the Italian Chief of State talked 

about Soviet RUSSIA and Mcrica» It was ncccssary to 

clearly understand the strength of one's adversaries, 

was Enemy N o . 1 , w i t h Soviet RUSSIA ranking America 

next. 

"Ho (MATSTJOKA) agreed �?ith these thoughts." 
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Now I shall read a document proving 一一 

THE FRESIDENT: Major Furness. 

MR. FURNESS: Here again, through omission, 

we cannot ascertain tha meaning of the language in 

this d n c i m e n t .ェ qiiote from it: "He (MATSUOKA.) 

agreed with these thoughts." Prior to that, there 

are several asterisks. We do not know what is 

omittede 

THE PRESIDENT: Well, you do, but we do not. 

You have read the lot, and you have the option of 

asking for more. Whether you have applied or notj 

I do not know. At least, I take it that the v/hole 

of this document was filed with the Clerk of t.:.ie 

Court for inspection by the defense if they so de-

sired and have filed an application, by the defense 

to me, for additional matorial from the document„ 

IQL FURKESS: If the Court please, the 

prosecutor has just s- id that this is part of exhibit 

582. I suggest that we get exhibit 582 and find out 

what was omitted。 

IHE PRESIDENT; Well5582 could have been 

dealt with in the manner that エ suggested, 

MR. FURKESS: It is imiDossible for U3, when 

we read these documents, to know that they are parts 

of exhibits which are already in evidence. 
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THE FRESIDEKT: I .know you hrve a gigintic 

task, but you must make the best of it. 

MR. GOLUKSKY: If the Tribunal plc-ase,でer-

haps it would savo time if v;e read the part which 

has been omitted. We omitted it "because it had 

nothing to do with onr phase, but，A'e .へre reidy to 

read it at any inoment. 

‘rris FRESIDENT: In this case,エ think we 

might well agree to that course "because we do want 

to know to what MATSUOKA agreed. 

MR. GOLUKSKY: I ropc-at the- last sent once 

read by General Vasiliev. "Finally the Italian 

Chief of State talked about Sovi^et Russia and Ameri-

ca. It VC1S n'. cessary to clc.arly understand the 

strength of one‘s adversaries. Air.crica was enemy 

N o , 1 with Russia ranking next.“ 

Then goes the omitted sentence： "By this 

remark the Duce gave him to underst-^nd that America, 

as the chiaf onsmy, should be thoroughly watched but 

should not b£ provocated. On the oth?.r hand, one 

must be decidedly ready for any contingency,“ 

That Is the onitted pirt. Then comes again 

the words read by General Vasiliev: "He (MATSUOKA.) 

agreed with th'^se thoughts；," which relates to the 

vv'holG sentence is well as the one read by Gener?.l 
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Vas-iliev and the- one ^ust rc-ad by me, 

MR. FURNESS： It is a question for the Court 

to decide what it relates to; but,- until these docu-

ments are nresented, neither the defense counsel nor 

the Court can tell what they relate to, 

THE FRESIDSMT: Captain Brooks, 

MR. BROOKS: If the Tribunal please, I would 

like to object on the manne-r that the rrosecution is 

presenting this evidence and request thit on these 

last three exhibits, for inst-nce, orhibit No,' 789, 

that at the close of the r.-ading of the first para-

graph that the prosecution stat.；： for the matter of 

the record that there is an oiriission, and takes up 

the second, raragraph. rnon, if there is a furth^r 

omission of a paragraph, we don't know whether it 

is one sc-nt-nce or sevr:ral. Then he up the 

next. And that in exhibit No. 790, that the first 

paragraph rer.d was on rage 8 of the- original, rage 3 

of this docuinent, exhibit 790; and that the next 

paragraph read is from rage 11 of the original. 

THE TRESIDENT: Well, neither ths defense 

nor the prosecution want the lot read, and, there-

fore, we h?.VG to trust to the ；iudgment of the prose-

cutor. But, if you have。‘ rrievince about any rar-

ticular part, you nre alwjiys at liberty to state it. 
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I think that we would expect you to confine 

yourselves to objections to particular matters and 

not to indulge in any general review, Captain 

Brooks. The points you emphasise are eleraent^iry to 

us, and I have no doubt they are to you. Nô w I 

think we have dealt with the vjholc of this extract. 

You may be able to point mit objections Inter to 

other extracts. 

m . BROOKS: If the Tribunal please, the 

point エi/vas trying to make is thr:t this would。‘void 

our having to interrupt. In other •words, all that 

would be left to do ?;ould bs for the defense to 

bring in these other omissions if the prosecution, 

in turn, ？jould r.oint out at the tiine that there v/ns 

an omission between these paragraphs as they read 

them, because they have not been pointing that cnit, 

and that‘s why we have been raising this ；coint is 

because the omissions are there, and on the record 

it does not show that there was any part, by aster-

isks or otherwise, in between. Pnd, if thsy would 

do th"t, we would not have to cill the Court's 

attention to it„ 

I request, as a matter of orderly proce-

dure, that the prosecution be required to roint 

©ut any breaks in the thought or the left out tor-
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tions of what evidence they are presenting here. 

That is all. 

THE PRESIDENT: Minister Golunsky. 

M R . GOLUKSKY: Since they are under this 

conception, I want to say that we use such formal 

quotations only in case when the whole document has 

been previously filed with the Tribunal and distrib-

uted among the defense counsel. Before we finish 

the presentation of each part of our case, we supply 

the defense with a' list of documents \'ie are going 

to produce, where the exhibit numbers are shown. 

But the last request of the defense that the prose-

cution should point out eich break is quite- fair, 

of course, and we are going to do so. 

IHE PRESIDENT: A colleague inquires whether 

exhibit 582 was the subject of an application in 

Chair.bers. I am sure it was, 

MR. GOLUNSKY: It was not because the whole 

document has been processed and distributed among the 

defense counsel. 

THE PRESIDENT: That means the defense got 

the whole lot. 

liR. FURKESS: It does. But, when we get 

document No, 532-B-, there is no way that we can tell 

that it is Dart of exhibit 582. In other words, it 
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THE PRESIDENT: I fully agree with you | 

that is how it should be dealt with here. Neverthelessi 

the objections you raise will not be met in that way; 

you will still have these objections. You will ask 

for more material to "be read. I observe that the 

prosecutor is always ready to read additional mater-

ial if he is asked', and if he were approached without 

a special application to us, I feel that a lot of time 

would be saved. If he refused in any case, then you 

roipht apply. 

General Vasiliev. 

GENERAL V A S I L I W : Now I shall read a document 

proving that these talks of Germany‘s preparation to 

attack the U.S.S„R. were at that time no news to 

IIATSUOKA. I have already presented in evicence ex-

cerpts from Ribbentrop's talk with OSHIMA on February 

2 3 , 1 9 4 1 , which received exhibit No. 632， prosecution 

document No. 531. In the course of this talk Ribben-

trop, as is to be see.っ from an excerpt I am going to 

quote, informed OSHIMA of military preparations 

against the U.S.S.H. 

I quote Ribbentrop's words. The excerpt is 

numbered 2 on the English copies of the document: 

"Military, the Reich Foreign Minister 

continued, the Fuehrer had created a number of new 

w
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formations during the wintePo In the spring 240 

divisions, including 186 first-class attack divisions, 

are a v a i l a b l e。 ( O m i s s i o n ) 

"Should Germany lose the war, the Soviet 

star would rise over E u r o p e .可 e observe the situation 

in the East attentively and with supreme calm. A 

German-Russian conflict, however, would result in a 

gigantic German victory and signify the end of the 

Soviet regime.“ (Omission) 

"However, Japan, in its own interest, should 

come in as soon as possible. This would destroy 

England's key position in t he Far East, Japan on 

the other hand would thus secure its position In the 

Far East, a position が，ich it can acquire only through 

war." (Omission) 

I continue to quote: "Ambassador OSHIMA 

agreed v'lth me entirely and said that he would do 

everything to carry through this policy.“ 

'?e have one more conclusive proof that in 

March 1941 lO.TSUOKA, Japanese Minister of Foreign 

Affairs, was not only informed by Ribbentrop of 

German preparations for an attack against the U.S.S.R., 

but even promis'ed Japan's support to Germany and 

assured Ribbentrop that the Neutrality Pact between 

Japan and the U.S.S.R. ̂  which IvIATSUOKA was going to 
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conclude, vrauld be put aside in case of an outbreak 

of war between Germany and the U,S.S,R. This is 

Ribbentrop‘s telegram to the German Ambassador in 

Tokyo dated July 5,194-1, No. 598. I shall present 

it in evidence, document No, 4062-G. 

MR. SHIMANOUCHI; I am SHIMANOUCHI, counsel 

for the defendant CSHIMA. 

In the document just read, 765 -- Exhibit 

765 -- prosecution document 531， before the words, 

OSHIMA agreed to Ribbentrop‘s words, there is the 

following omissions ”3. Should it seem to be in the 

Interest of Japan also to secure for itself still 

during the war in consideration of the coming New 

•7orld Order the position it wants to hold in the Far 

East at the time of a peace treaty.“ These words have 

been omitted。 I call the Tribunal‘s attention to this 

omission, 

THE PRESIDENT; ”,e will leave it at that. 

The question arises as to whether we should permit 

these interruptions, but your interruption is made 

before I understand that it exists -- before I londer-

st and that it is an interruption. However, counsel's 

contributions may be fully w a r r a n t e d .マ e will be able 

to consider that later. 

General Vasiliev. 



7,955 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

GENERAL VASILIEV: I repeat ray last sentence: 

This is Ribbentrop‘s telegram to the German Ambassador 

in Tokyo dated July 5，194-1, No. 598. I present it 

in evidence, document No。 4062-G. 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document 

No. 4062-G will receive exhibit No。 792. 

(•Thereupon，the document above 

referred to was mr -ked prosecution's exhibit 

No. 792 and was received in evidence.) 

G W E R A L VASILIEV: I quote the excerpts 

from this telegram: 

"The subject of a Japanese-Soviet Treaty 

of Non-Aggress ion or Neutrality has been touched 

upon by MATSUOKA and myself in our conversation of 

28 March 1941." 

I omit a few lines and continue to quote 

on page 2 of the English text: 

"In the same way, there may be an occasion 

in the further course of events to remind I^ATSJDKA 

that during? the same conversation in which he dis-

cussed the conclusion of the Japanese-Soviet Treaty 

with you, he made the following noteworthy statement: 

‘Should Germany come to blows with the Soviet Union, 

no Japanese Premier or Foreign Minister would ever be 
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able to keep Japan neutral. In this case Japan would 

be driven by the for-e of necessity to attack Russia 

at the side of Germany. No Neutrality Pact could 

alter any of this."' 

The documents which I am going to present 

prova that that attitude of principle in case of an 

outbreak of war "bê w—j'n Germany and the Soviet Union, 

MATSUOKA, Japanese Foreign Minister, did his best to 

put into practice in s far as it depended upon him 

when Germany treacherously attacked the U.S.SoR. I 

present in evidencs an entry from tl:e diarj' of Smetanin, 

Ambassador of the U to Jp.pan, dated Jime 25, 

1941，document No. 

THE PRESIL'jillT: Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document 

No. 1886 will receive exhibit No. 793. 

("Thereupon, the document above 

referred to was marked prosecution's exhibit 

No, 793 and was received in evidence.) 

GENEfUL VA3ILIEVJ I quote an excerpt! 

"I asked MATSUOKA the basic question concern-

ing the attitude of Japan towards the war； I asked him 

whether Japan would re.^ain neutral,the same way as 

the U.ScS.R. was, in accordance with the neutrality 

pact between the U.S.S.R, and Japan of A p r i l 1 3 of the 
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currem; year, 

"MATSUOKA evaded a direct answer to this 

question and said that his attitude to this problem 

had already been expressed (on April 22 of the 

current year) in his statement made by hirc upon his 

return from Europe. At the same time he emphasized 

that the Tripartite P.、c七 was the basis of the for-

eign policy of Japan and if the present war and the 

neutrality pact happened to be at variance with that 

basis and with the Tripartite Pact, the neutrality 

pact 'will not continue in force.‘“ 

In confirmation of all this recorded in 

Smetanin's diary, I present in evidence a telegram 

of Oot, German Jtabassador to Japan, sent from Tokyo 

to Berlin, No. 1248, document No. 4052-H. 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document 

No. 4-052-H will receive exhibit No. 794. 

("iTiereupon, the document above 

referred to was marked prosecution's exhibit 

No. 794- and was received in evidence.) 

GENERAL V A S I L I W : I quote: 

"Director European Section informed me that 

the Soviet Arabasssdor, on Saturday, announced himself 

to IIATSUOKA for an urgen七 conversation in order to 
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ask, in the name of his government, whether the 一 

neutrality pact would be applied, on the part of 

the Japanese, to the present German-Russian war. 

MATSUOKA replied that the neutrality pact could not 

be applied to the German-Russian war. It was con-

cluded at a time when the German-Russian relations 

were essentially different. 

"Russian Ambassador, who had expected a 

statement that would set his mind at ease, was much 

taken aback by this declaration." 

I present for identification a telegram 

of the German Ambassador to Jspan sent from Tokyo to 

Berlin on June 22，1941, No. 1C12, document No. 4033-D. 

I present in evidence excerpts from the 

telegram from which may be seen that MATSUOKA liter-
i 

ally on the first day of the German attack on the 

U.S.S.R. expressed the extremely hostile attitude of 

the Japanese Government toward the U.S.S.R. 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document 

No. 4033-I> will receive exhibit No. 795 for identi-

fication only. 

い？hereupon，the document above 

referred to was marked prosecution's exhibit 

No. 795 for identification.) 

THE PRESIDENT: The excerpt is admitted on 
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the usual terns. 

CLERK OF THE COURT: And the excerpt there-

from bearing the same prosecution document number will 

receive exhibit No. 795-A. 

('Vhereupon, the document above 

referred to ^as marked prosecution's exhibit 

No. 795-A and was received in evidence.) 

T m PRESIDENT: Yes. 

GENERAL VASILIEV: I shall read a passage 

from these excerpts on pag^e 2 of the Snp:! ish text. 

It is numbered 1 in the English copies of the document 

containing MATSUOKA's strtements mcde to the German 

Ambassador to the effect that， "He (i.e., IIATSUOK/J 

personally was of the same opinion as before that in 

セhe lonp run, Japan could not remain neutral, in this 

conflict." 

I omit a few lines which are immaterial, 

I continue to quote: "Towards the end of the Inter-

view MATSUOKA received another telegram from OSHIMA 

wherein the Reich Foreifn Minister called attention 

to an alleged Russian withdrawal of troops from the 

Far East. IIATSUOKA explained spontaneously that he 

would immediately propose coimter-measurGs." 

jlnother excerpt from this document will be 

read in connection with some other questions. 

iiiiiss 
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Now I shall present evidence that the 

Neutrality Pact between the U.S.S.R. and Japan grossly 

violated by Jppan, both in the interests of Japan and 

Germany, in the course of Germany‘s war against the 

U.S.S.R. The Fact, dated A p r i l 1 3 , 1 9 4 - 1 , h a s been 

presented to the Tribunal, exhibit No. Japan's 

attitude towards Germany's attack against the U.S.S.R, 

was first of all defined by a most important official 

document -- the decision of the conference on July 2, 

1941, presided over by the Emperor at which were 

present military and political leaders of Japan. 

I have presented in evidence on the other 

issue the excerpts from this decision, prosecution 

document No. 1652, exhibit No. 779. I shall read an 

excerpt relating to this issue. 

I respectfully call it to the Tribunal's 

attention that the following ivords precede the quoted 

passage in the minutes of the conference, Item "C", 

Section II. "C. Though the spirit of the Tripartite 

axis will form the keynote of our attitude toward the 

German-Soviet war we shall not intervene for a while, 

but take voluntary measures by secretly preparing 

arms against the Soviet Union.“ 

In that case the passage quoted further 

has direct bearing upon the contention we are proving 
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now; 

"Meanwhile, diplomatic negotiations will 

be continued with detailed precautions; end should 

the conditions of the German-Soviet war progress 

favorably to Japan we shall use arms to solve the 

northern problems, thereby securing stability in the 

northern regions.“ 

This decision was kept top secret while 

it was officially declared thst Japan observed the 

Neutrality Pact with the U.S.S.R. 'The.t it really 

amounted to may be seen from a telegram of Ott sent 

from Tokyo to Berlin on July 3，1941, ITo. 1109, in 

which Ott reported about the subject matter of his 

talk 前ith llATSUOKA, document IJo, 4062-E. 

THB PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF THE COURTs Prosecution's document 

No. 4062-E will receive exhibit No. 796. 

(•'Thereupon, the document above 

referred to was marked prosecution's exhibit 

No. 796 and was received in evidence.) 

GENERAL Vi.SILIEV:エ quote an excerpt: 

"MATSUOKA said the rea‘son for the formulation 

of the Japanese stctement to the Soviet /jiibassador was 

the necessity to deceive the Russians or at least to 

keep _them in a state of imcertainty, _ o m n g to the 
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now: 

"Meanvrhile, diplomstic negotiations will 

be continued with detailed precautions； end should 

the conditions of the German-Soviet war progress 

favorably to Japan we shall use arms to solve the 

northern problems, thereby securing stability in the 

northern regions.“ 

This decision was kept top secret while 

it was officially decl<nred th?t Japan observed the 

Neutrality Pact with the U.S.S.R. 'That it really 

amounted to may be seen from a telegram of Ott sent 

from Tokyo to Berlin on July 3，1941, No. 1109, In 

which Ott reported about the subject matter of his 

talk v/ith MATSUOKA, document No. 4062-E. 

THE PRESIDENT: /admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document 

No. 4062-E will receive exhibit No. 796. 

(•''hereupon, the document above 

referred to was marked prosecution's exhibit 

No. 796 and \ms received in evidence.) 

GENERAL VilSILIEV: I quote an excerpt: 

"3UTSU0KA said the reason for the formulation 

of the Japanese statement to the Soviet /jubassador was 

the necessity to deceive the Russians or at least to 

keep -them in a state of uncertainty, ov;ing to the 
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ermaments still being incomplete. At present Smetanln 

was not aware of speedy preparations being made against 

the Soviet Union as is hinted at in the government 

resolution transmitted to us。" 

A number of documents which I offer in 

evidence show ceaseless military preparations of 

Japan against the IT.S.S.R. in that period. I shall 

present in evidence a telegram of Mackensen, German 

Ambassador in Rome sent to Berlin on July 1,194-1, 

No. 1473, document No. 4062-F. 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms, 

CLERK OF THE COURTs Prosecution's document 

No. 4062-F will receive exhibit No. 797. 

(""hereupon, the document above 

referred to v;as marked prosecution's exhibit 

No. 797 and was received in evidence,) 

GSNERj；! VふSILIKV: In that telegram Mackensen 

reported about the visit of the Japanese Ambassador 

in these w o r d s .エ quote an excerpt: 

"He intimated that Japan has the intention 

to actively advance /Vorgehen/against Russia on its 

part, but needs a few irsore weeks. Such a policy, 

however, necessitates the resignation of Mr. lli'.TSUOKA; 

since the latter has only recently concluded a. pact 

of non-aggression with Soviet Russia, he would have 
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to leave the political arena, at least for a certain 

period of time." 

I shall quote in evidence an excerpt from 

a telegram of the German Ambassador to Japan sent 

from Tokyo to Berlin on July 3,194-1, No. 1102, 

document No. 4062-A, concerning military preparations 

of Japan against the U.S.S.R. This telegram was pre-

sented to the Tribunal in the course of the previous 

phase and received exhibit No. 636. Therefore, if 

your Honor please, I confine myself to quoting this 

excerpt, which should not receive its separate exhibit 

number. 

I quote the third paragraph from the bottom 

of the page: 

•'"I take pleasure in stating that Japan is 

preparing for all possible eventualities as regards 

the U.S.S.R, In order to join forces with Germany in 

actively combating the Coimnunist menace. Japan is 

keenly watching developments of conditions in Eastern 

Siberia in particular, determined as she is to destroy 

the communist system established there. It is, I 

believe, hardly necessary to add that the eufraentation 

of military preparations, among other things, with an 

.eye to realizing this object, together with the aim 

of restraining Soviet Russia in the Far East in her 
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struggle x'/ith Germany is steadfastly kept in the nind 

of the Japanese Government." 

THE PRESIDENT: Mr. Blewett: 

I.m. BLE”/ETT: If your Honor please, we are 

a little confused; we do not have document No. 4062-

/i, B , or C, although we understand that the counsel 

said something about it being formerly introduced.マe 

understand it is exhibit 636， your Honor. 

THE PRESIDENT: General Vasiliev. 

GENERii V/.SILIEV: I shall quote in evidence 

an excerpt from a telegram of Ott, German Embassador 

to Japan, sent from Tokyo to Berlin on July 4，1941, 

No, 1350, document No. 4062—B， concerning military-

preparations of Japan against the U.S.S.R. This tele-

gram was presented to the Tribun?.! in the course of the 

other phase of the trial and received exhibit No. 638. 

Therefore, if your Honor please, I confine myself to 

quoting this excerpt which should not receive its 

separate exhibit nunber. The telegram begins with the 

7rords: 

••Iiilitary attache reports following personal 

Impression from conversation ,.«,ith Japanese General 

Staff: 

"Japanese A m y is zealously preparing end 

under emphatic secrecy.“ 
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I omit item 1 and quote item 2: "A surprise,-

though not rush - commencement of hostilities against 

Russia, with the seizure of the coastal province as 

the first goal." 

.I offer in evidence one more document dealing 

with the same issue, namely the nemornndim of Kranarets, 

Foreign Ministry official, composed in Berlin on July 

6,194-1, document No, 4062-H. 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document 

No. 4062-H will receive exhibit No. 798. 

("Thereupon, the document above 

referred to was marked prosecution's exhibit 

No. 798 and was received in evidence.) 

GENERAL VASILIEV: "The Army High Command ‘ 

has informed us on 6 July: 

'けColonel Y/Jl/'-MOTO, assistant of the Japanese 

Military attache, in Berlin called on Colonel 

von Lahousen, Chief of Counter Intelligence Section 

II, on 4 July 1941, accDmpanied by Major Higuchi, and 

said the following: 

'"The Japanese General Staff hss commissioned 

hira to communicate /to us/ that the Japanese General 

Staff is ready to carry out sabotage attacks against 

Soviet Russia in the Far East, especially from Mongolia 
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and Manchukuo and, primarily, agsinst the area 

adjoining L&ke Baikal. 

I tender In evidence one more document 

dealing with the same issue, namely Japanese military 

preparations against the U.S.S.R., a telegram of 

Ott, German ijnbassador to Jepan, sent from Tokyo 

to Berlin on July 1 2 , 1 9 4 1 , No. 1200, to the German 

High Command of Armed Forces, document No. 4062-C. 

THE PRESIDENT J Admitted on the usual terns. 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document 

No. 4062-C will receive exhibit No. 799. 

("/hereupon, the document . above 

referred to was narked prosecution's exhibit 

No. 799 end was received in evidence. 

GENERAL VASILIEV: (Reading) 

"A. I believe the following individual 

measures for Japanese preparations for war seem to 

have been taken: 

" 1 ) N u m e r o u s officers called to new jobs. 

"2) Reserves of 24 years to 27 years 

allegedly called up. 

"3) additional car drivers called up. 

Requisition of tractors in Manchuria. 

Students not allowed to travel far. 

"6) Russian speaking persons called up. 
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"B. “lleg^edly only three divisions are kept 

in readiness for the occupation of Saigon which is 

expected on 17 July according to rumors. 

"C. Replenishment of the Kwantung れrmy 

for a war against Soviet Russia which is not yet 

imminent, evidently via Shanghai and Tientsin where 

reservists (cf.A2) and to begin with, about two 

Japanese divisions including the l6th, are being 

sent. 

"D. In China najor Japanese operations are 

•unlikely at present." 

I present in evidence on the same issue a 

telegram, No. 1415, sent from Tokyo on xiugust 1， 

194-1, by Ott, German ilmbassador to Japan, document 

No. 4025-D. 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's docunent 

No. 4025-0 will receive exhibit No. 800. 

い'Thereupon，the document above 

referred to was narked prosecution's exhibit 

No, 800 and was received in evidence.) 

GENER^IL V/.SILIHV: I emote an excerpt from 

this telegram in which Ott mentions the following 

words of YAMAM0T9， Ifinistry Secretary of the Ministry 

for Foreign Affairs: 
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"HG strongly underlined that Japan made 

the Anglo-Saxon powers very uneasy by her newly 

won position of power and that she has strengthened 

her pressure a great deal in favor of the /ocis powers. 

"Th mobilization works in the same way, 

which is being carried through with the intention of 

destroying the Russian military forces in the Far 

The Soviet Government is officially reserved, 

but according to reliable infornstions,Is watching 

tte mobilization with increasing anxiety ？nd will 

hsrdly decide to nove more troops to the '?est .“ 

Further in this telegram Ott says: 

"•Then I, because of rumors, which SHIRATORI, 

T/hon I visited again during the past days in his place 

of convalescence, had pointed out to me as being ser-

ious, anticlpatedly asked whether Japan intended to 

start her active advance with demands on the Soviet 

Government, the Vice-Minister narked this way as 

the best method of finding a defensive excuse for a 

Russo-Japanese attack in face of the neutrality 

agroenent. He is personally thinkinp of demands of 

such sharpness that the Soviet Governnent could not 

possibly be able to rccept then, whereby he seemed 

to hpve territorial cessions in mind." 

Finally, on the same issue, namely military 
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preparations of Japan aga.inst the U.S.S.H. and the 

tine of the proposed attack, I shell read an excerpt 

fron a telegran of Ott, German iteibassador to Japan, 

sent from Tokyo to Berlin on October 4 , 1 9 4 1 , No. 1974, 

which has already been presented by ne in evidence, 

prosecution document No. 4-065-A, exhibit No. 788-A, 

IViis excerpt is numbered 2 in the English copies of 

the document: 

> "Japan*s waging of a war against the 

Far Eastern /jmy, still considered as being in fight-

ing trin, is not feasible before next spring, unless 

a moral collapse of the regine comes about. The 

tenacity displayed by the Soviet Union against -Germnny 

indicates that not even by a Japanese attp.ck in 

August or September could the route via Siberia be [ 

opened up this year." 

THE P R E S I D E N T :マ e will recess now for 

fifteen ninutes, 

。？hereupon, at 1043, a recess was 

ta«.?n until 1102, after, which the proceedings 

were resunod as follows:) 
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MAPSHAL OF THE COURTs The International . 

Kilitrry Tribunal for +:he Far East is now rGsumed. 

the' PRElIDEKTs General Vasiliev. 

GENERAL VASILIEV: It is knoVv'n from the 

actual course of、events thst Japan did not attack 

the： USSP, but we shall present evidence showing why 

the Japanese attack against the USSR did not mater-

ialize. 

A rather detailed explanation of the 

reasons dtie to •'i7hich the Japanese military could not 

at.tack the Soviet Union in surnirer and cut-umn of 1941 

is given in a telegraF. nf Ott, Gerr.an Ambassador to 

Japrn s&nt from Tokyo on Septeirber 1 9 - ^ - 1 , 1 7 1 3 . 

I nresent the entire telegram for identifi-

cation (Document No. 4080-A). I shall offer in 

evidence an c.yce”pt fror this telegram. 

CLE?K OF C管 T : Prosecution's document 

No. 4080-A will rcceive exhibit No. 801 for identifl-

cati'^n only. 

(•"hereupon, the above-mentioned docu-

ment was rarked r^rosecation' s exhibit N � 8 0 1 

for identification.) 

THE PBELIDEKT. The eycerpt is admitted on 

the usual terms. 

CLERK or ニi.î  COURT; And the excerct therefroin, 

d 
b 
e 

P 

t 
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bearing tae sair:e dposedition docuipent number, will 

receive t xhibit No. 801-A. 

('''hereupon, the above-mentioned docu-

ment. wos marked T^mseciition' s exhibit No. 801-A 

and recGived in evidence.) 

GENERAL V丄ェェIJLV: Quote: 

"Even aft。r KITST'OKA's dismissal, The Third 

KONOYE Cabinet was set to undertake a far-reaching 

mobilization as a result of the decision of 2 July . 

which •was adopted in the presence of The Emperor5 by-

its very nature this mobilization "svas directed against 

the Soviet Union. Accordingly, FCNCYE considerably 

strengthened impeding elements of the new Cabinet, 

and, to a great extant, placed the responsibility upon 

the Navy. Thus a cover o.f the rear to the North was 

greatly impeded. As reported, the Army Command in 

recent inquiries has beeone more reserved as to a 

clash with the Soviet Union. It is being argued that 

the Japanese Army, tied up and 7?eakenod in the war 

against C H I M , was not in a position to start on a 

winter campaign against the SOVIET rnion. In view of 

the resistance put u： by the Russian Army against an 

army such as the German, the Japanese General Staff 

does not believe itself capable of achieving a decisive 

success against RUSSIA before Winter sets in. More-
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bearing the saire Drosecrution docuinent number, will 

receive fxhibit No. 801-A. 

C^hcreuDon, the above-mentioned cocu-

rent vj,3s TTiarked nroseciition' s exhibit No. 801—A 

and received in evidence.) 

GErlER；L V丄ぶILエニV: Quote: 

"Even aft^r KATSUOKA‘s dismissal, The Third 

KOWOYE Cabinet was set to undcrtskc a far-reaching 

mobilization as a result of the decision of 2 July 

which was adopted in the presence of The Emperor5 by 

its very naturt, this mobilization was directed against 

the Soviet Union。 Accordingly, FCMCYE considerably 

strengthcnod impeding ements of the new Cabinet, 

and, to a great extent, placed the responsibility upon 

the Navy. Thus a cover o.f the rear to the North was 

greatly impeded. As reported., the Army Command in 

recent inquiries has becor.e more reserved as to a 

clash with the Soviet Union. It is being argued that 

the Japanese Army, tied up and �veakencd in the -jvar 

against CHIT'A, was not in a position to start on a 

winter campaign against the SOVILT Union. In view of 

the resistance put up by the Russian Army against an 

army such as the German, the Japanese C-oneral Staff 

does not believe itself capable of achieving a decisive 

success against RUSSIA before Winter sets in. More-
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over, it Is probably guided by the thought of NOMONHAN, 

still vivid in the memory, notably of the 腿 N T U N G 

Army, The exaggerated conception of Russian strength 

is partly based on the misleading argument that even 

in view of the collapse of the UKRAINE front the Soviet 

Union still disposed of sufficient fighting forces 

for taking the offens''ve against PERSIA on the nearby 

CAUCASUS front, 

"In view of this appraisal of the situation, 

the KVvANTUNG Army allegedly pressed for a decision of 

the Imperial Headquarters,エlca:rncd from a usually 

reliable source that tho Imperial Headquarters in the 

last days came to the decision to postpone action 

against the SOVIET Union, A new decision was contem-

plated , t o be taken as soow. as clear signs of the de-

composition of the Far Eastern Army appear or when a 

great numerical superiority of the Japanese army is 

established," 

I shall quote a cxcerpt from the defendant 

OSHIMA's minutes of interrogation dated April 2 2 , 1 9 4 6 

offered by me in evidence before (Prosecution Doc. 

No, 4121, Exhibit No. 776) to show that the Japanese 

Government; bearing in raind the prospects of attacking 

the USSR was closcly watching the course of German-

Soviet war up to the time when it received the explana-
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tion of the German Government about the slowing up 

of its offensive operations. 

This excerpt is numbered 3 in the English 

copies of the document (pages 3 - 4 of the English 

text), 

“Quo 3. t ion! 

"Answers 

How did you inform your Government as to 

the course of the German-Soviet war? 

Approximately at the end of July or at the 

beginning of August 1941 I learned about 

the slowing up sf the pace of the advance 

of the German army. The advance was not 

proceeding according to plan* Moscow and 

Leningrad were not taken according to the 

German plan. I asked information fron 

Ribbcntrop on that sub j c-ct. Ribbentrop in-

vited Keittl to explain the matter, Keitel 

told me that the slowing up of the advance 

of the German army was caused by the ex-

cessive length of communications and rear 

units lagging behind, and that that was 

the reason why the pace of the advance of 

the Gsrmr array was approximately three 

weeks behind plan," 

I 
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GENERAL W丄ILIEV (Continuing)； Now I shall 

present in evidence the documents oroving that the 

Ja'Danese Government, Iv.inister for Foreign Affairs 

inc luded, conducted the saine nolicy towards the USSR 

after the chjsngt of Cabinet in July 1941 when MATSUOKA 

no longer �VGS ririster for Foreign Affairs. There-

fore , t h a t policy cannot "be considered only MATF.UOKA‘ 3 

^•^ollcy, but -was a っnlicy consistently conducted by 

the Japanese ruling militaristic clique as a 顶hole• 

I present in evidence document N�2 5 9 3 - D ( 2 1 )， a 

telegram from Tokvo to Berlin sent on November 30? 

19 ル1^’0。985. 

This document is one of the intercepted 

radio iressこ:ges v'hlch have already been adrdttod for 

identification and received exhibit lio- 603, Pros— 

6CT;.tion DoctiKGnt I\o. 2593-D(21) . 

THE PIiL6IDEI'iT: Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF THE COURTs Prosecution's document 

No. 2593-3(21) v;ill receive exhibit No。802. 

('"'hereupon, the above-mentioned document 

wss marked prosecution's exhibit No, 802, 

and received in evidence,) 

GEKSHAL V A S I L I E V ;エ quote ,an excerpt from 

the tf Leer am, itoirs ん and 5 on T)a8;e P of the English 

text. 
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"4, If, when you toll them this, the Ger-

mans and Italians cmestion you about our attitude to-

vjard the Soviet, say that we have already clarified 

our attitude toward the Russians in our statement of 

last July. Say that by our present Koves southward 

WG do not mean to relax our pressure against the Soviet 

and that if Russia joins hands tighter xvith England 

and the United States and resists us with hostilities, 

we are ready to turn upon her with all our might; how-

ever , r i g h t now, it is to our advantage to stress the 

south and for the time being we would prefer to re-

frain from any direct moves in tho north, 

”5. This ir.essage is important from a strategic 

point of view and must under all circ-amstanocs be held 

in the most absolute socrccy." 
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M R . BLEFETT: If the Tribunal please，、Ne 

ask the prosecution who sent that telegram -- who 

sent; the telegram and to whom was it sent, 

m . GOLUNSKY: If the Tribunal please, as 

General Vasiliev said, this telegram is from a group 

of intercer^ted messages already admitted by the 

Tribunal, and under those messages the name of the 

person who si,e;necl the telegram is not r.entioned; but 

it is clearly shown that the tele grain, emanated from 

the Japanese Foreif^n Office. 

M R . BLEVETT: do,not believe, your Honor, 

that that telegram has any probative value, and 

therefore ask that it be excluded. 

THE PREIEIDENT: Yovr submission will be 

considered. 

General Vasiliev. 

GENERAL VASILIEV： I shall present in evi-

dence a Japanese Government tele,r;ram No. 739 sent 

froiTi Tokyo to Berlin on August 15，1941,document 

No. 15-F(3), to prove thot the decision adopted at 

the conference on July 2 , 1 9 4 1 to secretly carry on 

military r)r en orations against the USSR camouflaging 

then by dix^lonatic nesotistions , was actually carried 

into effect. 

This telePTar ms rmlDlished in the symposium 
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"Pearl Harbor", an official government publication 

issued in � s h i n g t o n . Sinultaneously I present this 

symposium for identification. 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document 

Ko.15-F(3) will receive exhibit No. 803 for identi-

fication only. 

(V，he retro on, the above-mentioned docu-

ment was marked prosecution's exhibit No. 803 

for identification.) 

TEE PRESIDENT: The excerot is admitted on 

the usual terms. 

CLEIiK OF THE COURT: And the excerpt therefroir., 

bearing the seme prosecution’s document number, will 

receive exhibit No. 803-A. 

he rent) on, the f.b eve-mentioned docu-

rrent was marked prosecution's exhibit No. 803-A, 

and received in evidence.) 

THE PRESIDENT: Ma；)or Blakeney. 

MR. BLAKENEY: I should like to point out 

that in this document also, tog:c ther with certain others 

that are yet to coTne, bear no evidence whatever of 

their origin, from whom they were sent or to whom 

they ere going, and are, therefore, objected to on the 

same grounds. 

THE PRESIDEKT: All these intercepted messages 
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or what purport to be intercepted messages are ad-

mitted. The Court will have to determine later the 

extent of their probative value. 

GENERAL V A S I L I E V :エ quote an excerpt from 

the telegram; 

"At tine time of my conversation vdtli Ambassa-

dor Smetanin the other day, I mentioned our desires 

in regard, to the full realization' of our rights and 

iri七e:res七s in Northern Saghalien and also the removal 

of danger zones in the waters of the Par East. Since 

then, we have been asked by the Soviet as to the atti-

tude of Japan toward the German-Russian war; to which 

we have replied that there has been no change in our 

intentions of continuing friendly relations between 

Japan and Russia, that thus far ve have maintained 

an attitude of observing the neutrality pact, and 

that it is still our desire to contini^e this in the 

future, but, that whether or not we can continue thus 

is a question that depends on the way in v/hich the 

Soviet Union responds to this. For irisセance if (a) 

any of the Soviet Union's territory in East Asia 

should be ceded, sold, or leased to a third power, 

or offered as military bases, (b) the Soviet Union 

should take any steps thst would cause -the sphere of 

any third power's military moveruents to fee extended 
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into East Asia, or should conclude with a third 

power an alliance 七ha七 micht have tha Einpirs as its 

objscセ,v;6 certainly could, not overlook the threat 

that tlii.-̂  would bs to our nation. 

"To this the Soviet Ainbsssador replied, tliat 

ths Soviet govermmsnt is rigidly observinc； the Japanese-

Soviet ttsutfality pact, and that as far as the a'oovo 

mentioned two points are concerned he could give 

assurance that there has bsen notbin^ of the kind and 

that there will i)e nona in the futvire," 
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GENERAL VASILIEV (Continuing): That is what 

the Soviet AFibassador was told. 

And now I shall present to the Tribunal a 

document: showing how the same talk was described in 

a conversation with the German Ambassador. 

I shall present in evidence document No. 

15-F(4) , a Japanese Government telegram Noi 740 frori 

Ti。kyo to Berlin dated August 1 5 , 1 9 4 1 from the same 

syir.posiuir, "Pearl Harbour." 

CLEFK OF THE COUBT: Prosecution's docuir.ent 

No. 15-F(4.) Tvill receive exhibit No. 804. 

(V'hereupon, thu ebove-nentioned docu-

ment was rarked prosecution's exhibit No. 804 

and received in evidence.) 

GEI^EEAL V A S I L I E Y :エ quote an excerpt con-

taining a question rrut by Ott, Gerran Anbassador in 

Tokyo, about the talk with the Soviet Ambcssador v.'hich 

I“ have just merit ioned: 

"The Soviets do not have the irpression that 

Japan will not take part in the Gerran-Soviet vvar 

The telegrair： goes on: 

"To this I replied that in view of the ir.il-

itory expansion the Empire is at present effecting,エ 

think under present existing conditions the above-

mentioned arrans^enent v;ith the Soviet is the very best 
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future plans conc'rnlng the Soviet which will be 

undertaken together with the German Government, that 

this is entirely in harmony with the spirit and 

objectives of the Tripartite Troaty, and that I hoped 

that the German Government would fully understand 

triis point." 

Now I shall present in evidence- a telegram 

from Tokyo to Berlin dated December 6，19^-1, No. 1003, 

proving that the attack on the Soviet Union was a 

matter of tire and situation. (Document No. 2593-D(37) 

It is a part of the entire docuiricnt which, received 

ex ibit No. 603 for identification only. 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usunl terms. 

CLEKK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's docraent 

No. 2ヲ93-D(37) will receive exhibit No. 805. 

(Whereupon, the above-nientioned docu-

ment was marked prosecution's exhibit No. 805 

and received in evidence.) 

GENERAL VASILIEV: I quote the following 
excerpt from the telegran: 

"From the standpoint given in 4 of my 

we would like to avoid bringing ニ"bout s.ny 

situation likely to result in an farmed clash with 

Soviet Russia until strategic circumstances nermit it; 
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and so get the German Government to understand this 
position of ours and negotiate with them so that at 

least for the present, they would not insist "upon 

exchanging diplomatic notes on this question." 

I shall read an excerpt from a telegrair； 

signed by Ermansdorf, member of the German Legation 

at Bangkok, dated November 17,194-1 to the Reich 

Foreign Minister, Document Kunber 11-A(6). 

This telef^rair： was prぐsentし;d to the Tritiunal 

in evidence in the course of the previous phase of 

the trial and received exhibit No. 655. Therefore, 

if j'-Q-ur Honor please, I confine ryself to quoting this 

excernt which should not receive its separate exhibit 

nurber. 

エ shall read an excerpt containing OSHIMA's 

statement to the German Government: 

"He is of the opinion that in view of the 

time of year, irilitary operations against the Soviet 

Union could take place only on a lirited scale.エ七 

probably would not prove too difficult to occupy the 

northern (Russian) part of the island of Sakhalin. 

In view of the severe losses hich the Soviet troops 

have suffered at the hands of the German troops, they 

could also DPobably be driven aivay from the border. 

However, any a t a c k on Vladivostok or even any advance 



7,983 

2 

3 

22 

23 

24 

25 

toward Lake Baikal at this time of year was scarcely 

possible and wo-uld under present circumstances have 

to be postponed till Spring." 

I shall present in evidence an excerpt from 

a telegram of Ott, Gcr. 'an Ambassador in Tokyo, sent 

to Berlin on January 2 9 , 1 9 4 2 , No. 245， proving that 

the Japanese Government was only waiting for a favor-

able Eoment to attack the USSR and did not cease pre-

paring: for the war against her. Document No. ll-A-(7) 

It will be noted that document No. ll-A-(7) 

received exhibit No. 639 for identification only. 

THE PIIESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF THE COIF T: Prosecution's document 

No. ll-A-(7) will receive exhibit No. 806. 

(V'hereupon, the atove-mentioned docu-

ment was marked Drosecution's exhibit No. 806 

and received in evidence. 

GENERAL V A S I L I E V :エ quote the end of page 

3 of the English text. 

"According to very confidential informntion, 

however, rrilitary preparations against Russia are 

under way in Ivlanchuria. Influential circles here are 

of the ordnion that after the conquest of Port Darwin , 

Japan r/ust turn against Russia and seize Vladivostok, 

the coastal province and North Sakhalin in order 
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definitively to make itself also secure in the north." 

I tender in evidence a telegram by Ribトentrop, 

No. 1197， sent from Berlin to the German Ambassador in 

Tokyo on May 15, evidently 194-2 judging by its contents, 

proving thst on the one hand Germany Insisted on Janan's 

entry into the war, on the other- she msde it dependent 

on how for the Japanese armed forces were prepared for 

it End on the possibility of launching an attack against 

the U.S.S.R. without withdrawing her ？rmed forces from 

the south, document No. 1230. 

THE PRESエ應T: Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF THE n U R T : Prosecution's document 

No. 1230 will receive exhibit No. 807. 

(Wliereauan, the do-..ir.iprt above referred 

to was marked prosecution's exhibit No, 807 and 

received in evidence.) 

GENERAL VASILIEV:エ quote an excerpt numbered 
1: 

"With respect to the question dealt with in 

your telegram on Japanese-Russian relations, the follow-

ing should be taken under consideration: without 

doubt the opportunity to seize the Siberian Coostal 

Province and Vladivostok, so vitally necessrry to 

Japanese security, will never be as fpvorrble as at 

present when Russia's combined strength, is strained 
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to the utmost on the European front. In this siturtion 

the following exists: 

" 1 ) I f Japanese estimates of Russian forces 

in Siberia are accurate, and she is ？ble to overcome 

Hussifin resistance in Vladivostok ?nd penetrrte into 

Siberia in the direction of Lrke Baikal, then such an 

undertaking would be very significant to the subsequent 

development of the war. Japan can not evade the threat 

to her rear from Russian coastal provinces, it would 

therefore be best if she would arrive ct a decision to 

attack Vladivostok at the very earliest. There is no 

question thrt this intervening time is used by the 

Russians in cooperr tion with the Americrns for the sole 

purpose of fortifying the Siberi?.n Cor.stal sreas in 

order to provide air bsses which will constitute r threat 

to Japan. Therefore, the earlier the rush aerinst 

Vladivostok tekes place the less •orogress will have been 

made in these preporrtions. However, this is all bssed 

on the premise that Jr.pan is sufficiently strong for 

an operation of this nature and will not hrve to free 

other forces which would weaken her position against 

England ？nd America, as for example, in Burms. 

"2) If Japan lacks the necessary strength to 

successfully uncertake such ごn operation then it would 

nrturally be better thot she maintsin neutral relations 
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with Soviet Russia. 

エ omit few lines, as they will be quoted 

in connection with some other issue, and continue to 

quote the last line of page 1； • 

"Bv maintenance of neutrality, the risk of a 
long drawn out vir.v with insufficient forces r.nd 

particularly with danger of air attacks against the 

Japanese Home Islinnds will be a.voided. In this respect 

Japsn must undertake the offensive in some other direc-

tion, ns for example, India or Austrclla, in order to 

contribute effectively to the joint conduct of the war. 

"In summing up, the following is to be snid 

from the Gerinr;n standpoint: a sudden rnd successful 

attack cgainst Soviet-Russin might prove a grert boon 

for the further conduct of the w?r to the Tripartite 

Powers, but this should only be undertaken if success 

can be cssured.” 

Other excernts from this telegram will be read 

by me in connection with some other questions. 

I shall present in evidence r： telegrrm, 

No. 433， from Tokyo to Wrshington, deted July 3 1 , 1 9 4 1 , 

proving thrt postponing the moment of the attack till 

the time of s more frvournble siturtion the Japanese 

military clique v/r-s the srnie time afrcid of being 

late and missin?" an opportunity of carrying out its 
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aggressive plans against the U.S.S.R., document 

No. 2593D(2). It is a pr.rt of the entire document 

which received-exhibit No. 6〇3 for identification only. 

THE PRESIDENT; Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution document No. 

2593D(2) will receive exhibit No. 8o8. 

(Whereupon, the docioraent above referred 

to was marked prosecution's eicHibit No. 808 and 

received in evidence.) 

GENERAL VASILIEV: I quote an excerpt from this 

telegram, part 2; page 2 of the English text: 

"Needless to s?y, the Russo-German war has 

given us ？n excellent opportunity to settle the northern 

question, and it is s fact thrt we are proceeding- with 

our preparations to take sdvr!ntr‘ge of this occasion. 

Not only will we hrve to preprre, however, but we must 

chose well our chrnce. In view of the real situntion 

facing our Empire, this should be ersily understood. 

If the Russo-German wrr proceeds too swiftly, our 

Empire would inevitably not hrve time to tr.ke sny 
effective symmetrical action." 

To prove that Japan had no reasons to fear 

an attcck on the part of the U.S.S.R., I shell present 

in evidence s resep.rch report, No. 131, dated 

Eecember 1 , 1 9 4 5 , nnd called "Jarrn's Decision to Fight/ 
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This was published by General Headqur'.rters of the Sunreme 

Coranander for Allied Powers, document No. 1628. 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's'dociment 

No, 1628 will receive exhibit No. 809. 

('"'hereupon, the document ebove referred 

to was marked prosecution's exhibit No. 809 rnd 

received in evidence.) 

MR. FUHKESS: If the Court T̂ lê ise, we would 

like to know whrt this research report Is, what arte 

it purports to speak. According to its fact, it is 

dated 1 recember 194-5 which is nfter the war was over. 

THE PRESIDENT: The whole document is tendered 

for identificntion. It is on the tnble before us, I 

understrnd it is a SCAP document. 

MR. FURKESS: According to its face, the SCAP 

document is also dated 1 December 194-5. 

THE PRESIDENT: It looks like a SCAP record 

of certain events, including this one. It is cn nrmy 

document coming within the express terms of the Charter 

エ think, Major Furness. 

m . FURNESS: I know it is, but it speaks of 

1 December 1945. Is it Japan's decision at thrt time 

or -- , 

THE PRESIDENT: That is the drte of the research 
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report- It is a case of the absence of a date, not 

of inconsistency between dctes. 

MR. FURNESS: I Suppose I should leave It to 

to the prosecution to clear it up. 

THE PRESIDENT: General Vesiliev. 

GENERAL VASILIEV; From this report I quote 

section "General Situ?tion," Item "E", of a secret 

operation order No.1,dated November 1,1941, issued 

by the combined navy rnd signed by Admiral YAMMOTO, 

Isookii, Cammsnder in Chief of the Japanese combined 

navy in connection with prepr̂ rlrig war against the 

U.S.A. and England. The rest of the document will be 

used by Mr. English. I quote ps'ie. 7 of the English 

text: 

"Policy toward the Soviet Union. The 

strength of Soviet forces on the Soviet-Manchukuoan 

border is formidable. The Union of Socialistic Soviet 

Repu"blics is maintaining a vigilant alert awaiting 

developments. However, if the Emrdre does not attack 

the Soviet Union, it is believed that the Soviet Union 

will not commence hostilities 

THE PRESIDENT: That assigns the dste ？,nd the 

source. 

MR. FURNESS: Of course, it isn't yet in 

evidence but I understrnd it will be put in evidence. 
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GENERAL VASILIEV: To show that Germany no _ 

doubt appreciated that help which was rendered to it 

"by means of tying up Soviet Army forces in the Far East, 

I shall read an excerpt from Ribbentrop's telegram to 

the German /mbassador in Tokyo dated May 15, evidently 

194-2. The telegram has just been presented by me in 

evidence, prosecution document No. I23O, exhibit No. 807. 

This excerpt is numbered 2 in the English conies 

of the document. The following words, quoted before, 

precede the passage I am going to rend. I quote them 

for the sake of preserving logical sequence: 

"If Japnn lacks the necessary strength to 

successfully undertrke such En operation then it would 

natuPolly be better thrt she maintain neutral relations 

with Soviet Russia." 

The next few lines have direct berrlng upon 

the question under consideration: 

"This also erses our burden since in any event 

Russi? must ma in t? in troops in Erst Siborir. in antici-

pation of a Japanese-Russian conflict." 

I present n document showing that in case the 

Hitlerite Germany v/ould face the tragic moment when 

her complete defeat became a certainty, Japan planned 

an attempt to help her ally by offering peaceful medi-

etion between the U.S.S.H. and Germany, even threatening 
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the U.S.S.R. with opening hostilities against her. 

This is sn excerpt from the symposium of the 

Institute of Total "̂ er entitled, "The Program of Total 

Wnr in the First Period," "The Construction of Erst 

Asia,” dra'ATi up in February, 1942. This entire sympos-

ium, document No. 1621, has been presented for identifi-

cfition by Colonel Rosenblit, exhibit No. 689. I present 

nn excerpt in evidence. 

Tiff. PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usu?l terms. 

CLERK OF THE C : Prosecution's document 

No. 1621B Tvill receive exhibit No. SlO. 

(Whereupon, the dociamcnt above referred, 

to vvas marked prosecution's exhibit No. 810 and 

received in evidence/) 
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GENERAL VASILIEV: I quote on page 4 of the 

English text； 

"If there should arise good prospect that 

peace between Germany and the U.3.S.R. would cause 

Soviet alienation from America and Britain and reduce 

the threat against Japan, we shall mediate for peace 

between Germany anc the Goviet Union by bringing, if 

necessary, pressure to bear at a period when the 

war situation is favorable to Germany. 

"To force peace on the Soviet Union by hinting 

at a declaration of war against her if she should refuse 

to suspenc hostilities•” 

I omit part of Item II. 

"When the war situation is unfavorable to 

Germany, it shall be the general rule that no efforts 

will be made to bring about peace between Germany and 

the Soviet Union. However, we must be prepared to 

exert great pressure on the Soviet Union in case of 

unavoidable necess ity, and to expect a peace which 

may not be necessarily satisfactory." 

Now エ shall pass over to presenting evidence 

showing that during the war of Germany against the 

U.S.S.R. the Japanese military clique provided Germany 

with the information concerning the military and poli-

tical situation of the U.S.S.R. using for this purpose 
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Japanese military and diplomatic bodies, 

I shall quote an extract from Ribbentrop's 

telegram to the Germaii Ambassador in Tokyo, dated 

July 10,1941, prosecution document No. 571, exhibit 

No. 771, that has already been offered in evicence 

to the Tribunal. This excerpt is numbered 3 in the 

English copies of the docuir.ant^ 

"Plaase thank the Japanese Foreign Minister 

at this opportunity for having trai^sinitted the telegram 

from the Japanese Ambassador at Moscow. It would be 

good if WG sould receive more news from Russia in this 

way at regular intervals." 

Along with other evidence, the affidavit of 

witness NCHARA, Komakichl, pross agent of the Japanese 

Embassy in Berlin, dated February 15,1946, document 

No. 2074, shows that Ribbentrop's wish was gratified; 

that is to say, the 广ovision of Germany with the 

information on military and political conditions in 

the U.S.3.R. continued on a large scale. 

I shall present this affidavit in evidence. 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF THE COURTj Prosecution's document 

No. 2074 will receive exhibit No. 812. 

Correction: Prosecution's documont No. 2074 

will receive exhibit No. 8 I I . 
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(Whereupon, the document above 

referred to was marked prosecution's exhibit 

No, 811, and was received in evidence.) 

GENERAL VATILIEVs I quote the most important 

passages from the affidavit. 

Whon asked, "Explain the origin and character 

of the documents in German and. English shown to you 

which were found on you by the Red Army officer ^hen 

you were apprehended, ana why ?.'ere these documents on 

you," the witness answeredミ 

"Answer s The present documents on four sheets 

of paper which viers actually found on mc, belonged in 

the past to the Japrinese Embassy in Berlin. As I was 

a convinced anti-Fascist I was against the war of Japan 

and Germany against the Soviet Union and her allies. 

I deliberately kept these documents and intended to use 

セhem in the intorost of the allies, as エ was sure that 

the day would come when these documents would to a 

certain extent expose the Japanese war criminals, who 

had provokao the war against the peace-loving countries 

and brought their country and their people to a 

catastrophG. Therefore, I kept those documents and 

made no attempt to hide or destroy them. When on the 

21st of April 1945 エ was taken in Strausberg I handed 

them over to the Soviet officer. The greater part of 
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those documents were socret. Though It was not my 

immeciata duty, as a press agent, to dsal with cocu-

monts of that kind, yet I was made to be concerned 

with secrct v/ork by the counselor of tho Embassy 

Kavahara Sin.“ 

Correction: Embassy Kavahara. 

"My duty was to i?;ork at the docuniGnts of 

military and other socret information. The work 

considGred to be top secret and nobody but Arabnssacor 

0SHIII4, tho counselor of the Embassy Kavahora and mo 

wero Initiated in it. The gronter part of tho prusont 

documents which vvGro found ぐDout mo are copios of 

memorandums, containing secret inforrantIon nbout the 

number and disposition of tho units of the Red Army, 

its equipment and supplies, the state of the wnr inc. us-

try of the Soviet Union and its production; planes, 

tanks and also manpower of the U.3.3.R. Tha Japanose 

Embassy in Borlin recelvod military information of 

similar nature about tho Soviet Union from Japaneso 

Ambassadors in Moscow TATEKAVA and SATO in the form of 

ciphered tGlograms, at which the Counselor Kavaharp. 

and mc worked afterwards and translated into German. 

Afterv^ards the Japanese Embassy in Berlin passed that 

Information to the German Ministry for Foreign Affairs. 

"Questions You are boing shovm tho docuinGnt 
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of the 19th of January 1945, headed ドfnr Potential of 

the Soviet Russia,‘ in which figures of planes, tanks, 

oil, etc., produced in the Soviet Union, are omitted. 

By whom and when was the document drawn up and wh?\t 

does the omission of the figures mean? 

“Answer: This document was drawn up by the 

Counsolor Kavahara and me in January, 1945", on the 

ground of the infora^itlon, received from SATO, the 

Japanese Ambassador in Moscovv', The omission of the 

figures is mace by the Counselor Kavahar.s; he vjrote 

them in hand in the 1st copy gnd handed the copy as 

it was, to the Gerncsns. This information Kavahara 

considered top secret. 

"Question: Among the documonts found nbout 

you, there is a document under the title of ‘On the 

Strength of the Red Army.* There is a mark, mado in 

your hand on this document, stating that on the 21st 

of January:, 1942, tho military attache in the Japanese 

Embassy in Moscow, through us, handed the follo'-ving 

information to tho Ministry for Foreign Affairs. Undor 

the document it is written in your hand that ‘on the 

22nd of January, 1942, that informセion was in the 

hands of the Gcrmrm CoKciander-in-Chief. ‘ Explain whrit 

those marks on that cocuniGnt mean, 

"Answer: This document is n record of secret 
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information received by the Japanese Embassy in Berlin 

from the Japanese attache In Moscow on the 21st of 

January, 1942. That's how the origin of this informa-

tion was explained to me orally by the Counsel of the 

Embassy, Kavahara, The r ecord Is reproduced by me in 

this cocuraent on the ground of draft copies. The next 

day, on the 22nd of January, after Kavahara and me had 

worked up this document, the Counselor Kavahara per-

sonally handed it to the Germnn Foreign Office. As to 

the delivery of sccret Information about the Allies to 

the Germans by the Jap-inese Embassy in Berlin, I want 

to say in addition that from 1939 till1945 the 

Japanese Embassy handed, as far as I remember, Pbout 40 

communiques to the Germans whenever they were corning 

from Moscow, London and Tokyo. The contents of those 

materials, mainly, refer to v^Rr-economic power of the 

U.S.S.R. ？.nd her Allies. Part of the materials were 

summaries of certain investigations concerning dif-

ferent problems, other materials were results of per-

sonal observations of the Japanese" -- and other 

foreigners -- "who passed through the Soviet Union in 

war-time." 

I omit a question and answer, and pass over to 

the next page. 

"Question: By whose orders did the Japanese 
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Embassy in Berlin pass the secret inform,?tion about the 

U.S.S.R. to the Germans? 

""Answer: By the order from Tokyo and the 

personal order of Ambassador OSIilMA•” . 

THE PRESIDSINT: We will adjourn now until 

6 half past 

(Whereupon, at 1200, a recess 'ras 

taken.) 
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MARSHAL OF THE COURT: The International 

Military Tribunal for the Far East is now resumed, 

THE MONITOR: Before we begin, Mr, President, 

the reading of the Japanese translation of what was -

read by the Soviet prosecutor was a few lines behind. 

I request that we be allowed to finish it up. 

THE FRESIDEKT: General Vasiliev. 

m. SHIMANOUCHI: I am SHIMNOUCHI, counsel 

for the defendant OSHIMA.エ should like to ask a 

question to the prosecutor. In the first page of 

exhibit 811 it is said NOHMIA is now detained in the 

Soviet Union. 

The first point of my question is: Why was 

he detained in the first place? And, when he was 

being interrogated, whether he was being tried as a 

war criminal--whether he was going to be tried as a 

war criminal, or he was being tried as a war criminal, 

or that he had been tried already as a war criminal. 

ITiis is the first point that I sbpuld like to ask. 

The second point of my question is, accord-

ing to the exhibit 811, NOHARA is said to be a Japan-

ese national. However, NOHARA was not a pure Japan-

ese; he is a Eurasian born of a German and a Japanese, 

and that he was merely an employee of a minor --

lesser rank of the Embassy, and that he did not know 
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the Japanese language very well, 

THE MONITOR: Slight correction: The point 

I would like to ask is whether, because he is a 

Eurasian, is it not true that he does not speak 

Japanese very well? And also, second question is, 

is it not true that he has a very low rank-in the 

employ of the Japanese Embassy in Gsrinany? 

THE PRESIDENT: Counsel is not at liberty 

to give evidence at this stage. However, the Russian 

prosecutor might answer those questions as far as 

he can. 

Minister Golimsky, 

腿.GOLUKSKY: All I can say is that at the 

time when he was questioned, NOHARA was not put to 

trial as a war criminal, nor was he charged with any 

war crime. He was interned as all the other personnel 

of Japanese diplomatic mission. What is his status 

at the present tine? I cannot tell at the moment, I 

will make inquiries and submit tfce"information to the 

Tribunal as soon as I get it. 

As to his racial origin and the extent of 

his knowledge of the Japanese language, I, iinfortun-

ately, cannot give any information to the Tribunal 

because エ do not possess it. 

THE PRESIDENT: Well, now, ；just a minute. 
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I think we have heard enough about this,エ am sure 

you will want to start making statements of fact 

which may very properly be the subject of evidence 

later on, which cannot properly be stated now, 

、MR. SHIMANouCHI: I have something to ask 

of the Tribunal.エ should like to ask the Tribunal 

to direct the prosecution to summon NOHARA as witness 

to the Tribunal on the ground that NOHARA‘s testi-

mony - - i t is very important in determining OSHIMA‘s 

case, and that there is a great difference and dis-

crepancy between his testimony and OSHIMA‘s testi-

mony as appears in CSHIEA‘s interrogation. And he 

should be called, I think, for the purpose of cross-

examination. 

THE PRESIDENT: The application will be 

considered. 

General Vasiliev -- Mr, Chief Prosecutor, 

MR. KEENAN: Mr. President, a subpoena has 

issued from this Tribunal at the behest of the de-

fense for the forthwith appearance of former Ma;jor 

General MATSUMURA, Japanese Army. He has been 

brought here by the Soviet prosecution for the purp-

ose of apnearing in Court, presenting his affidavit, 

and giving cross-examination in accordance with the 

"usual procedure. He will be presented in court within 
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a day or two, in the orderly procedure of the pre-

sentation of the prosecution's case. We, therefore, 

ask the Court respectfully to suspend the Order for 

his being ordered to appear forthwith on behalf of 

the defense for the reasons stated, 

EKE FRESIDEKT: We will treat his appear— 

ance here during this stage of the case as a com-, 

pliance with the Order, 

Major Blakeney. 

MR. BLAKENEY:エ should like to be heard on 

the matter inasmuch as the subpoena and alias sub-

poena were issued at my behest. Appearance of the 

witness on behalf of the prosecution, of course, 

does not comply with my request that he be brought 

here for direct testimony on behalf of the defense, 

IHE PRESIDENT: You might refresh my memory 

with the facts. What hapnened in respect to this 

particular person? 

MR. BLAKENEY: The subpoena was issued some 

months past at the request of General IMEZU for the 

appearance of General MTSmiURA to testify on his 

behalf. In requesting issuance of that subpoena,エ 

made the statement that I was imable to say when his 

attendance for testimony would be required but that 

his attendance for consultation with counsel was 
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required forthwith. It having been apioarontly im-

possible for the Secretariat to procure service of 

the subpoena,ェ rec^ixested and secured the issuance 

of an alias subpoena last week, I believe. No 

matter what the witness may testify on behalf of the 

prosecution, I would be limited by the rules of 

cross-examination from proving by him, even if ェ de-

sired to in this stage, the matters for defense for 

which he was originally requested as a witness. 

ェ see nothing in what has just been said 

here to suggest any reason that this Tribunal--that 

the subpoena should nc: be served on the witness 

whenever and wherever he can be found. Certainly, 

I detoct nothing in the Charter to suggest any im-

mimlty on the witness for service of process by this 

Tribunal. I, therefore, respectfully request that 

the Marshal be directed to serve the subpoena on the 

witness when he appears in the courtroom if it cannot 

be served before, _ 

THE PRESIDENT: Well, this is the position: 

You issued a subpoenc for him. But, before it was 

served, he was approached, apparently, by the prose-

cution who say they will have him here in the course 

of a day or two. The situation is somewhat novel. 

However, if he is called here in the course of a day 
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or two, there lA'ill bo nothing to rrevent you from 

serving a subpoena, 

皿。KEEKANs Mr. President, may I ask the 

Court to direct that the subpoena, which is now out 

and which'calls for his presenting himself forthwith 

before this Court, as エ understand it, be suspended 

for the reason that we have‘had past experience 

where we have brought affidavits of witnesses •--

Japanese v/itncssos -- here, and they get in the hands 

of defense counsel. We have had an unfortunate GX-
perionce with thoir testimony when they appear on 

the witness stand, 

Mr. President, the time for the presentation 

of the defense has not arrived, and v/e are present-

ing a witness in accordance with the Court's ruling, 

in an orderly fashion, and we do not want to have 

him subpoonaed and brought into this court by the-

Coirrt' s Order for tho purposes of defense before we 

have an opportunity of using him as o,ar witness at 

our time during this prosecution. We have had un-

fortimatG 'experience in tho single instance we know 

of in tho past. 

lie request to have the Order suspended for 

the reasons stated, 

[fflE PRESIDENT: The summons is to the court 
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and not to the witness to place himself in the 

hands of either the prosecution or the defense. 

Our only concern is t]:it he comes here at the time 

stated in tho suimnons. 

MR. BIAKENEY: Mr. President, in view of 

the clover charge made by tho Chief Prosecutor,エ 

should like to point out that this witness was sub-

poenaed by the defense long before there i?jas any 

intiination that ho would testify on behalf of the 

prosecution. 

IKE PRESIDENT: Major Furnsss. 

M R ,應 K E 3 S ; If the Itibunal please, if 

the Chief Frosccutor has any chargos to make, I wish 

he would make them opsnly. I also request that they 

be investigated by this Itibunal, 

IHE PRESIDENTS Ihera is no charge before 

us against any specific individual, and, therefore, 

there is nothing for us to investigate。 

！JR, FDRKESS: If he makes tliem at a l l , I 

thinlc he should bo specific. 

IHE PRESIDENT: Well,ェ am satisfied to 

state what エ regard as the Tribunal's position. We 

have issued an Orcier。 it is complied with, as 

it can be by the v^itncss coming here at the time 

stated, that is the end of the matter as far as we 
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are concerned. Further,action, disciplinary or 

othorv;ise, may be renderod necessary later accord-

ing to the attituclG of the defense or the prosecu-

tion towards the witness, 

MR. KEENAF: Mr. President, so that tho 

coimsGl for prosecution get the matter clearly, here 

is a witness v;ho we are preparing in the orderly 

course of our prosGCution to •Dresent toncrroY? cr 

Monday. Wcs are now conferring with hln about the 

preparation for his testimony. In the nGnntimc, v;g 

are ordered to present hin forthwith in the custody 

of the Court to serve as a defense witness before, 

of course, the defonse is ready to present its 

testimony. Arc v/e to now bring him down to this 

coiortrocm forthv/ith and have him stay in the witness 

room, or may we keep him where ho already is and 

bring him in in the course of the next two or three 

days in the orderly presentation of our case? May 

I make that direct inquiry of the Court? 

Mr. President, that the Court may know tho 

state of the record, briefly, on 30 July, 1946 a 

summons to testify was issued to KATSUMIJRA, Japanese 

national, USSR, "to appear in person as a v;itness on 

behalf of the prosecution."‘ 

I am informed by the Clsrk that there v;as a 
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subpoena issued l6 July, 194-6 by defense requiring 

his prescncG in a summons to testify for defense. 

THE PRESIDENT: Miat does the rest of the 

summons say? 

MR. KEENANs The summons that I am advert-

ing to now is dated 11 October, 1946, and it reads: 

"You arc hereby sunnonod and required to be and 

appear in person forthwith at the witness room, 

No. 123, in the Courthouse of tho International 

Military [Tribunal for tho Far East," etc., "then and 

there to testify on behalf of the accuscd UMEZU in 

the abovG entitled ease." 

THE PRESIDENT: The defense yjcvc the first 

to summon him, and thoy summoned hici on the 16th of 

July -- on the 11th of July, was it? 

MR. KEENAN： That is correct. 

THE PRESIDENT； Ihoy were the first to 

summon him, 

MR. KEENAN; But, of course, Mr. President, 

ho is not being callGd by the defense to testify forth-

with during the period of time when the prosecution 

is proceeding. He is now, Mr. President, being 

interviewed by the prosecution, will be here in two 

or three days, and this subpoena takes hini out of 

our control and brings him on behalf of the defonso 
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forthwith hors and now to testify on behalf of the 

defense. And I state to the Court that that identi-

cal proceeding, when last followed, ended up with 

our witness in the office of defense counsel. And 

afterwards, it was nccessary to dostroy his credi-

bility, cnactod by the prosGCUtion in this quostion-

ing, as the Court observed. Those arc the facts. 

Let the chips fall v;herG they may, 

THE PRESIDENT: Well,tho fact is, he.is 

here now in the custody of tho Court. He is not 

required imncdiatGly for the purpose of defense. 

They arc not giving ovidencc-. But you arc giving 

evidence, and you have subpoenaed him. The Court 

could make him available to ycu. You would call 

hin as your witness. And for that purpose, you would 

bo entitled to take a tDroof of his evidcnco, Vfo do 

not want you to pnt a witness in the box without 

taking a proof of his evidence. 

Fending his production in court to give 

GvidencG for the prosGcutioiij the defense could not 

properly approach hirc. The defense could cross-

examlno the witness, and, if not satisfied, they 

could subpoena him for the defense, or they could 

insist on the subpoena for him as a witness being 

complic-d with. Complaince would be effectively made 
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MR, FURNESS: May I say to clear the record 

that the witness about whom the Chief Prosecutor 

spoke was interviewed in my office and was brought 

out on ray ovm cross-examination and that after that 

the Court said that I had nothing to explain. If I 

had had anything to explain I would have explained 

it then and an ready to explain it now. Prosecutor 

further said that he had no charge to make against 

any i\merican counsel. 

THE PRESIDENT: He expressly exonerated 

you. I recollect the circumstances clearly. I said 

that he had named you but he said no, he had not 

implicated any American counsel.I think you are 

unduly sensitive, Ma;]or. 

I said the subpoena for the defense could 

be complied with at any time after the defense gave 

evidence. That is so. Up to the time they commence 

to give evidence, of course, the summons does not 

apply but they will have an opportunity to take proof. 

General Vasiliev. ‘ 

GMERAL VASILIEV: The documents to which 

NOHARA referred in his affidavit are presented in 

evidence togrether with the affidavit of NOH/JIA.マith 

the permission of the Court I shall not quote then 

entirely for they are a long enumeration of various 



8,011 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

items which characterize the war potential and the 

war economic potential of the U.S.S.R., and listen-

ing to them would be tiresome. I shall only briefly 

enumerate their titles which are necessary for the 

understanding of the nature of these dociments: 

"On the strength of the Red Array. 

"The strength of Russian forces before 

the outbreak of the Russian-German war, 

"The European Pact of Russia 

"The Far East ‘ 

Correction: "The European Part of Russia." 

"The strength of Russian forces reinforced 

by mobilization contingents since the outbreak of the 

war. 

"Casualties during the war (till the 

beginning of December 194-1). 

"Tar Potential of Soviet Russia 

"Output of military production 

"Aircraft 

"Tanks 

"Coal.".. 

"Oil 

I,Iron and steel 

"Aluminum 

"Copper 
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"Trucks 

"Manpower 

"Food situation ” 

I shall read an excerpt from the minutes 

of interrogation of the defendant OSHIMA dated April 

22,1946, which has already been presented by me in 

evidence, prosecution document No. 4121, exhibit No. 

776. This excerpt proves that NOHiiRA really was an 

employee of the Japanese E-mbassy in Berlin, 

I quote an excerpt numbered 4 in the 

English copies of the document, on page 4 of the 

English text: 

"Question: Do you knov; NOHAM, press-agent 

of the Japanese E mbassy in Berlin? 

"Answer: Yes, I do. He worked as inter-

preter in our Embassy. His father was Japanese, his 

mother German, he received German education, was con-

nected with the Embassy and was lately used for radio 

interception work. He worked with us unofficially. 

RUSSIAN INT聊RETER: Correction: In the 

document referred to by General Vasiliev the words 

read as "The European Pact of Russia" should have been 

read, "The European Part of Russia.” 

G E N U V.ASILIEV: (Continuing)',’リness 

MATSUH/JRA who will be introduced to the Tribunal by my 
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colleague, Colonel Rosenblit, will give testimony as 

to the provision of -Germany with the information about 

military and political conditions in the U.S.S.R. 

I shall present for identification the 

record of Rlbbentrop‘s talk wich the defendant OSHIMA 

on March 6 , 1 9 4 3� document No. 2312, concerning the 

time of the proposed entry of Japan into the war against 

the U.S.S»R. and the aid which Japan rendered to Ger-

many by tying up the forces of the Soviet Army in the 

Far East. 

I offer apology to the Tribunal on the 

following account. Though brief excerpts from the 

record of this talk were in due time processed and 

distributed to the defense, however, owing to the 

objections raised by the defense to some of the ex-

cerpts being too brief and the attitude of the Tribunal 

toward this question, we have made a much, more complete 

translation but we succeeded in distributing the Eng-

lish and Japanese copies of It not long before the 

beginning of this afternoon session of the Tribunal. 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terns. 

C L m OF THS COURT: Prosecution's document 

'No. 2312 will receive exhibit No. 812 for identification 

only and the excerpt therefrom bearing the same pros-

ecution document number will receive exhibit No. 812-A. 
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(Whereupon, prosecution's document 

No. 2312 was marked prosecution's exhibit No, 

812 for identification; the cxcerpt therefrom 

boarIng the same number was marked prosecution's 

e-xhibit No, 812-A and was received in evidence.) 

G—JNSRAL V A S I L m： (Reading) 

"Ambassador OSHIMA declare;^ that he had re-

ceived a telegram from Tokyo, and he is to report to 

the German Foroi^n Minister, by order of his govern-

mtnt, the following: 

"The suggesti-^ii of the German Government to 

attack Russia was the subject of a mutual confurence 

between the Japanese Government and Imperial Headquar-

ters , in which the question was exhaustively discussed 

and minutely probed. The result ^as the following: 

"The Japanese Govirnmont thoroughly recognizes 

the dangjr which threatens from Russia and. has full 

understanding for the desire of its German ally, that 

Japan, too, enters into the war against Russia. It 

is not possible for the Japanese Government, hovrever, 

in view of hor present war situation to enter into the 

war. It is rather of the conviction that it is in the 

common interest, not to start the war against Russia 

now. On the other hand, the Japanese Government will 

never disregard the Russian question. 
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"The Japanese Government has the intention 

to once again, in the future, take the offensive on 

the other fronts. 

"On the declaration of the Arab as sad or, the 

German Foreign Minister asked how one conceived, in 

Tokyo, tho future waging of the war. At present, 

Germany is to a great extent waging war against the 

common enomies, England and America, alone, while 

Japan is taking a rather defensive stand. Hovi/ever, 

it would bo more in order ，..f all the powers bound by 

the Tripartite Pact ；joinod all their forces to jointly 

defeat nat only England and Amcrlca, but Russia as 

well. It Is not good when ona part nust fight alone. 

One should not overstrain the German people's strength. 

In secret he is concerned that forces could be at 

work in Tokyo, who are of the opinion 一 一 and who also 

propagate it — that Gormany would conclude the fight 

victoriously anyv;ay, and Japan should therefore fur-

ther consolidate herself before it would make further 

and supreme efforts. 

"The U.S.A. and England were pursuing the 

strategy that the Allies should at first turn all 

their strength against Germany and Italy alone, and 

had also expressed this in CASABLANCA completely openly 

as their program. Actuality has confirmed this until 
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now. Unfortunately, Ambassador SATA in KUIBYSHEV has 

apparently delivert;d to the Russians in this matter 

the assurance of the absolute neutrality of Japan. 

HowGVL;r, we had to •undergo the experience that on the 

Eastern Front — especially in STALINGRAD also — 

fresh Siberian di/vision had fought. We v/ould never-

theless attack the Russians again and again. The 

situation on the Eastern Front had stabilized itself 

and a stable German Front had been established except 

for a small,still existing, gap, Howevor, at the 

same tino vi/e hsve to fight against iingland and Amcrica 

more or less by ourselves in Africa, in the air ani 

on all the oceans as v.oll, 

"Compared with this, Japan's share was small, 

2ven the battle area in BURMA was small in comparison, 

Tokyo must therefore understand it -̂î hen Germany raises 

the question of whether in the spirit of waging the 

；joint war, it is the correct strategy for Japan not to 

make full use of her people's strength, while Germany's 

is strained to the limit. He would like to emphasize 

again that if Germany would ever become weak, Japan 

would find herself facing a world coalition which 

would consist not only of England, America and Russia, 

but the people's strength /VOLSKTiAFT/ of all the 

countries on earth, as well as that of a bolshevized 
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Europe. The question was therefore raised whether 

at this time so e x c e e d i n g l y decisive for the outcome 

of the war, the strength of the allies was properly 

distributed and was really being used in the spirit 

of a ；joint, total conduct of the war. 

’ I Ambassador OSHIMA answer ed that what deci-

ded the issue for Japan was whether she had sufficient 

forces and whether her armamGnt capacity was suffi-

cient in Qyder to attack and defeat the Rus.^^ians, in 

addition to the GnGmios Japan already has, without 

endangering hor operations on the other fronts. 

Tokyo is afraid of splitting its forces. On the other 

hand Japan's attitude v/as in no I'w.y purely defensive 

and just waiting, but a new attack a gainst the U.S.A. 

and the British will surely take place, Even though 

he has no detailed reports concerning this, he per-

sonally believes thnt this attack will come in the 

direction of the Indian Ocean. In any case, however, 

the belief in an inseparable mutual victory of the 

allies was a foregone conclusion for Tokyo," 

(Omission) 
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"The German Foreign Minister commented at 

this point that an infraction of mutual trust was 

naturally completely out of the question, since this 

was unshakeable between Germany and Japan. In the 

matter of the inquiry which was brought up, it was 

solely a question of the joint conduct of the war, 

the strategy which is to be jointly carried out, 

that is, the proper use of the common strength, Ger-

many entirely understands that Japan must first finish 

constructing her newly won bases and positions and 

must consolidate her forces. Japan had done this for 

a year and now when Germany is bearing' the brunt of 

the struggle, Japan should be in a. position to be 

able to apply a new decisive blow against the common 

enemy. It was in no way a question of mutual, trust, 

but he sometimes is concerned that Japan has the in-

tention of consolidating her forces for yet another 

year and only later starting a new attack. 

"Upon this the Ambassador replied that he 

did not think so. The intentions of the military 

leaders in his fatherland were unknown to him; never-

theless, he knew that for a long time Japan had the 

intention of turning against Russia. But for the 

time being she evidently did not feel strong enourh 

to do so. If one withdrew the front in the South and 
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abandoned several islands to the enemy in order to 

shift all forces to the North, this could be possible. 

This would, however, mean a heavy defeat in the South. 

Both an advance to the South, and at the same time to 

the Forth was itn^ossible for Japan," 

(Omission) 

"The German Foreign Minister then once 

more brought up the question of a Japanese attack on 

Russia, by stating that the strugf^le on the Burma 

Front as well as in the South was more of a maritime 

-。roblem and that actually only a few land troops 

were beinp employed on all fronts, exceptlnp China. 

The attack on Russia was therefore in the first place 

a matter for the Army and the consideration was 

whether the necessary forces were nevertheless ready 

for this. OSHIMA replied that the bulk of the Jap-

anese Army was bound In China and on the Burma Front 

the forces were b.y no means insipnificant either. If 

Japan should want to attack Russia, she would have to 

bring almost all the troops î rotn the South into ？'anch-

uria. In any case, one did not have enough troops in 

order to be able to attack Russia with the firm pros-

pect in an early victory.” 

(Omission) 

I pass over to page 
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"The general strength of the Pussian Army 

amounts to 800,000 men. It was quite natural that 

the Russians left so many troops at the frontier, as 

in the course of their history they had always until 

now made extremely unpleasant experiences with sur-

prise attacks on the part of Japan. 

"Concerning our reports on Russia‘s im-

ports from the U.S.A. via VLADIVOSTOK, OSHIMA thought 

that Japan allowed the Russians only one seaway., and 

that on this seaway all ships are searched for arras 

and atntnunition." 
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THE PRESIDENT : Counsellor SHIMMOUCHI. 

MR. SHIMANOTJCHI: The document which has 

just been read by the prosecutor is a completely 

different one from that which had been given to us 

Japanese counsel and we did not follow at all what 

was poing on here. I therefore wish to reserve the 

right to make an objection in connection with this 

document. Furthermore, even if the document which 

had bern delivered to us were identical to the document 

which is now being read, I should like to point out 

that the certificate of origin attached thereto is 

not sufficiently clear. 

THE PRESIDENT: It is as clear as any 

certificate of a similar type covering documents 

from Germany, which means that it is clear enough. 

The defense should be given a correct copy of the 

document read, if they have not already received one. 

It is no ground of objection, of course. 

Major Furness. 

MR. FURNESS: If the Court please, I think 

the certificate of origin differs a good deal from 

most of the certificates from Germany. 

THE PRESIDENT: It is a German certificate 

supplemented by an affidavit in general. The affidavit 

is beinp tendered as an exhibit. 
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MR. FURNESS: All that we have is a certif-

icate from a first lieutenant to the effect that the 

documents are nov; in .the custody of the United States 

Chief of Counsel for the Prosecution of /ixis Criminality. 

THE PRESIDENT: I sufgest, Major Furness, 

that you carefully examine this certificate and the 

7 i other material suLpplcmenuing It 'before you decide to 

make an objestr.cR, I am not asserting you are wrong 

but I think you a:re。 
I 

0 j General Vasiliev, 
I 

1.1 GENERiUL V.1GILIT!:V: Now I shall present 

2 I evidence proving that deliberate hampering of Soviet 

ろ‘trade shipping in the Far East was one of the ways in 

which Japan rendered considerable help to Germany in 

waging war against the UeS.S.R. in the period of' 

1941-45. 

Article 9 of the Portsmouth Treaty of 1905� 

presented In evidence to the Tribunal, exhibit No. 21, 

provided that: "Japan and Russia mutually agree not 

to construct in their respective possessions on the 

Island of Sakhalin or the adjacent islands, any 

fortifications or other similpr military works. They 

also respectively eng'age not to take any military 
i 

丨 measures which may impede the free navigation of the 

j Straits of La Perouse and Tartary.l! 
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I present in evidence the report of the 

Chief of the U.S.S.R. Naval General Staff dated 

February 20,1946，No. 34-563S, document No. 1887, 

showing that the Japane?3 Government hampered Soviet 

shipping In the Far East in any possible way, though 

under the provisions of the Neutrality Pact of 194-1 

Japan had no right to undertake any actions which 

could inconvenlonce the Soviet Union during her war 

with Germany。 This also included trade shipping. 

THE PRTUSI顾T: Mr. Logan. 

MR. LOGAN: If the Tribunal please, this 

document,1887, apparently :.s a communication fron 

the Admiral of the fleet to the prosecutor, Minister . 

Golimsky. It Is dated February 20,1946, and there-

fore it is not a document that was prepared by hin 

during the occurrence of the events of which he is 

attempting to testify to in this letter. It Is not 

sworn document end in it he draws conclusions and 

opinions without setting forth the facts on which they 

are based. He draws inferences from documents and his 

conclusions as to what are t he ultimate facts from 

those docuriGnts. H e conraents on those documents and 

he also comments on newspaper reports. He even draws 

inferences from the agreements between Japan and Russia 

and towards the last he sets forth a table which 
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contains only the barest ultimate facts. All in all, 

it appears to me, if the Tribunal please, that this 

document is a raere summation of what the prosecution 

is trying to prove in this particular phase of the 

case. I believe It should be excluded on the ground 

it has absolutely no pr- bative value. 

THE PRESIDENT: Minister Golunsky. 

MR. GOLUNSKY: If the Tribunal please, 

this docnment has been issued by the Chief of the 

Naval General Staff of the Soviet Navy and as such 

comes under Section (d) of Article 13 of the Charter, 

which provides that: "The Tribunal shall neither 

require proof of facts of coMnon knowledge, nor of 

the authenticity of official governnont documents,“ 

I omit several words, "and findings of military or 

other agencies of any of the United Nations." 

THE PRESIDENT: ^ould that cover a statement 

by a witness to a prosecutor as to the facts that he 

would be able to establish if he were called as a 

witness? 

MR. GOLOTSKY: It is a document signed by the-

THE PRESIDENT: Yes. A point like this arose 

in the Chinese Section, I recollect. will have to 

resolve this in the sane way, I take it. I have for-

gotten we _theiu_。’ e will nnnslf^^r this point. 
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MARSHAL OF THE COURT: The International 

Military Tribunal for the Far East is now resumed. 

THE PRESIDENT: The Tribimal has decided to 

adKit document I887 on the usual terms, but it may be 

that some Members of the Court, whether a majority or 

not I do not know, will pay little regard to it; and 

they would expect.，tSî rt’ if the matter is really im-

portant to the prosecution, they should have the 

advantage of the evidence of some Russian officer of 

standing who could testify to these matters, 

The objection is overruled. 

CLERK OF TEE COURT! Prosecution's document 

No. 1887 will receive exhibit No. 8I3. 

(thereupon, the above-mentioned 

document was marked prosecution's exhibit 

No, 813 and received in evidence.) , 

GENERAL VASILIEV: I quote a few brief ex-

cerpts from the report: • 

"I inform yon that the Naval General Staff of 

the U.S.S.R. Nsvy hcs st its disposal the follovrlng 

data on the measures tsken by Jr.nan to tie up the 

Soviet navigation in the course of World "ar II. 

"These measures mny be divided into the fol-

lowing three groups: 

’'1.Closing for navigaticn the strrits con-

G

 o
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riFctin厂 the op?;n -rr s v?hich wss a violation of the 

freedom of the seas end violstion of article 9 of 

the Portsmou.th treety concerning thp nsvigetion in 

the strsits of Leper-use. 

"2, Exemining pnd holding up of Soviet 

ships by the Japanese commend accompanied by the 

violeticn of generally recognised principles cf 

internetionel lev;: 

，'3. Attacking and sinking of Soviet ships. 

"At the beginning of World Y/sr II J?pgn 

procleimed the Str?lts of Lpperuse, Sanger end Koree,• 

her "•Naval defensive zones' (Eteter.ent K 3P of the 

Neval Ministry, in the official government Bulletin 

•iKsnpo'i, December P,1941). 

"This meg sure enetled the Jap?nese authorities 

to control the JVrienese Fee end its outlets end wss 

directed ageinst the U.S。S.R. 

"An attempt to establish e control of this 

kind on the p?rt of Jp-pen hed plreedy taken pl?ce 

before Jepen entered the ” 

"This is testified by thp ststement of the 

Jepsnese Ambassador in Mosccr" addressed on August 25, 

1941 to the People's Coimissar of Foreign Affairs of 

the U.S.S.R. to the effect thet the shipment from the 

U.S.A. to Vladivostok of the meterials purchesed by 
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the U.S.S.F:。creates an "embarrassing and 8 very 

delicate situ-ation' for Jep-en, so far es these 

purchasepre shipped close to the Jeranese territor 

In connection with this the Japanese government 

reouested that the Soviet government should pay 

serious attention to thet feet, especially to the 

nuestion of the routes encl merns of these shipments. 

"In reply to this the Soviet government 

found it necessrry to make e stetement thet it could 

not t-J.t consider the s-t-tempt 

betx"'een the U。S.S。R. pnd the 

Eestern ports en "unfriendly 

to hinder the trede 

USA through the F?r-

tov'srds the U.S.S.R. act 
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I omit three paragraphs as being Immsteripl. 
/ 

Quote: 

"Legal status of Soviet trade shipping 

(befori^. the declaration of war by the U.S.S.R. on 

Jepan) was determined by their belonging to a neutral 

country. Since the streits，》.'ere proclaimed by Japan 

'naval defensive zones' the neutral Soviet trade ships 

might have had セhe right to go not only through the 

Straits of Laperuse (art. 9 of the Portsmouth treaty), 

but elso throi.]gh the Sangar, Korean and Formosa 

Straits, straits of international importence. 

"The Soviet Union was psrticulerly inter-

ested in using the Sangar Straits, v'hich directly 

connect the Japanese Sea v?ith the Pacific, 

"The use of Laperuse Straits for navigation 

is less advantageous. In the first place, the straits 

connect the Japanese Sea ^^ith the Sea of Okhotsk, 

and the latter with the Pacific through the Kuril 

Straits, which naturally, makes the route long;er 

and hampers shipping, and secondly, Soviet ships 

can pass through the Laperuse Straits from January 

to April only with the help of powerful icebreakers. 

"The Soviet Government frecmently reau.ested 

that the Japanese governments open the Sengar Straits 

free from ice in the winter months for Soviet trade 
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ships, but those renuests Fere declined under the 

protest that this zone was a defensive one, 

"By way of compromise the Japanese suggested 

that Soviet ships navigate through the Korean Straits 

gnd further north, to the east of the Kyushu end 

Honshu Islands." 

I omit a few lines. Quote: 

"Besides the fact, that the route through 

the Korean Straits indicated by the Japanese was 

disadvantageous, it was dangerous for navigstion 

pnd threatened the safe sailing of Soviet vessels." 

I omit a few lines. Quote; 

"The Straits of Laperiise T;ere practically 

closed since the Japanese had left only two narrow 

fairways for the passe.ge of Soviet ships." 

It is stated further In the quoted docu-

inent in the form of a table that from August 1941 

to the end of 19在4 the Japanese authorities held 

•up 17? Soviet conrercial ships in the Pacific; 

three of there ships were he].a •,”：） by force of arms, 

rnd eight were led away into Japanese ports. 

I shall present in evidence a document 

proving that as socn as Germany attacked the Soviet 

Union, MTSUOKA, Japanese Foreign Minister hestened 

to assure the German Government that the USA would 
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not be in a position to deliver military supplies 

to the Soviet Union by the Pacific route, though 

thst action was at variance with the Neutrality 

Pact and international law accepted by all civil-

ized countries. I shall read an excerpt from a 

telegram of the German Ambassador in Japan sent 

from Tokyo to Berlin on Jtme 22,194-1,No. 1012 

which has elresdy been presented by me in evidence 

(Prosecution Doc. No. 4033-D, exhibit No. 795-A.) 

エ auote item 3 of this telegram in the 

English transl&tioiT, It is rmmbersd 2 on page 2 

containing MTSUOKA.'s statement made to the German 

Ambassador that (emote): 

"For himself he could once again assert 

that the United States would not be in a position 

to deliver military supplies to the 

by the Pacific route. The Japanese 

certsinly be of the same opinion," 

Soviet Union 

cabinet would 
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In confirmation of the clearly hostile stand 

of the Japanese Government toward the Soviet Union as 

to the delivery of American materials, I shall offer 

in evidence tele grain No. 48? to the Japanese Ambassador 

in Washington from the Ministry for Foreign Affairs in 

Tokyo dated Angust 20,1941 (document No. 15-F-6). The 

telegram has been taken from the symposium "Pearl 

Harbor." 

TUB PRESIDENT J Admitted on the usual terns. 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document 

No, 15-F-6 will receive exhibit No« 814. 

(Whereupon, the above-mentioned 

document was innrked prosecution's exhibit No. 

814 and received in evidence.) 

GENERAL VASILIEV: I quote the following 

excerpt from this 'telegram (part 2): 

"If it becomes definitely known that the 

United States is shipping iron, airplanes and other 

materials "by way of Japanese coastal waters to as-

sist Soviet Russia, this fact would unnecessarily 

provoke the feelings of the Japanese people, and it 

cannot be said that it will not have an unfavorable 

effect on the question of readjusting Japanese-

American relations -- a question which is at the 

present stage a very delicate one. Te \vould like, 
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therefore, to see the United States refrain from 

such action, w m you take a good opportunity and 

tactfully call the attention of the United States 

authorities to this facf? Today エ personally called 

the attention of the American Ambassador to it 

To prove that all measures of Japanese 

authorities hampering the Soviet Trade Shipping were 

taken by Japan in full accord with the German Govern-

ment, エ shall read an excerpt fron the record of 

Ribbentrop's talk with 03HIMA on June 24,1942, which 

has already been pres-. ted by me in evidence (docu-

ment No. 1372, exhibit No, 778). 

This excerpt contains a short note handed 

to Ribbentrop by the Anitassador OSHIMA during their 

talk. The excerpt is No. 2 on the English copies of 

the document。 

That is what OSHIMA said: 

" 1 . S i n c e Japan entered the war, 20 Russian 

merchantmen, totaling 102,000 tons, with a Eiaxlmm 

loading capacity of 113,124 tons have entered the 

harbor of Vladivostok^ During "their voyage, these 

ships were searched by units of the Japanese Navy. 

The search revealed that the freight consisted mainly 

of foodstuffs, flour, sugar, vegetable oil, etc. and 

contained no armaments or munitions. 
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"2. Apparently, the transport of these goods 

to Vladivostok was carried out in most cases after 

reloading in the harbor of Petropavlovsk. The occupa-

tion of the western Aleutian Islands by Japanese 

fighting forces will make this method very difficult 

in the future." 

To prove that the hostile actions of the 

Japanese military as regards Soviet Shipping in the „ 

Far East were in many cases carried out quite openly, 

エ shall present to the Tribunal a number of documents. 

I respectfully request the Trilniml to take 

into consideration the- following: I shall present in 

evidence a numb or of c"-- cunents, the originals of which 

are in Russian, relating to detention and sinking of' 

Soviet vessels. These entire documents have been ‘ 

translated into English and Japanese, reproduced and 

distributed to the Tribunal and tc the defense. As 

the reading of entire documents would take much time, 

I， with the permission of the Court, shall read only 

brief excerpts containing the most Inportant passages 

from these dcciiments. 

I shall produce in evidence the report of 

March 20,194-6, of the Military Prosecutor of the 

Pacific Ocean Area of the U. S. S. R. (document No. 

2232), 
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The report states that on April17,194-3, 

the Soviet Ship "Sergey Kirov" sailing with a cargo of 

foodstuffs from Petropavlovs.k to Kamchatka to Vladi-

vostok through the Korean Straits was held up by a 

Japanese destroyer and .was brought under the nscort 

of the destroyer to the Tokyo Bay whore she was un-

lawfully held under arrest for six days, 

THE PRESIDENT: Mr. Bl.ewett. 

ISi, BLEY^ETT: If your Honor please, I thought 

I may have anticipated- the offering of this document. 

エ am not sure that the prosecution did offer it, but 

he gave us the niiraber of it. 

If the Court please, if this docment No. 2232 

is being offered in evidence, we object on the same 

grounds as the document 1887, which 肌s given No. 813， 

exhibit. This document, if the Court please, and the 

succeeding ones referred to by the prosecution, are 

simply reports from officials and in the same category 

as 1887； and In addition to the objection placed 

against I887, exhibit Ko, 8I3, we also object to 

these documents on the ground of materiality. It would 

seem that the Japanese in time of v/ar had the right 

under the law to fortify themselves in their own 

v;aters and to take the necessary precautions to 
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protect its own shipping, and also to protect its 

neutrality in so far as contraband was concerned. 

THE PRESIDENT: The decision on document 

1887 covers this case. We repeat the observations 

made when, this decision was given. 

The objection is overruled, 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document 

No. 2232 will receive exhibit No. 8l5. 

(V'hereupon, the above -nent ioned 

document was marked prosecution's exhibit 

No. 815 and received in evidenceo) 

THE PRESIDENT: Yes, General Vasiliev. 

GENERAL VASILIEV: I quote the following 

excerpt from the above-mentioned report: 

"In spite of compliance with all the 

established rules of navigation in th'e vicinity of 

Japanese Islands, at 10 sOO hours on April17，1942, 

near the Island of 'B5i :ara Jima' latltuda^SB degrees 

30 minutes north and longitude 140 degrees 02 raln-

atas. east, the said ship was stopped by a Japanese 

destroyer which without finding out the nationality of 

the ship, the nature of her cargo and her route, and 

regardless of the protests of Captain Ushakov, pro-

posed that the s M p follow them Into the Tokyo Bay. 

"In spite of non-resistence on the part of 
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the crew of the ship, in executing the orders given 

from the destroyer, the latter was repeatedly threaten-

ing to conmiit violence against the ship, end wantonly, 

fired t7/o volleys from her gnns, and,likewise, twice 

aセ night machine-gunned the ship 

I shall present in evidence the report of 

March 22,1946, of the Military Prosecutor of the 

Pacific Ocean Area of the U. S . S. P.. based on the 

results of the investigation of the circumstances of 

the detention of the Soviet Ship "Dvina" by the 

Japanese ships in the Straits of Laperuse in July, 

1943. (Document No. 2325). 

THE FRESIDEKT: Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK 0? TEE CnUPT •�Prosecution document 

No. 2325-A will receive exhibit No, 816. 

Ci? he re up on, the ab o v e -me n t i o n ed 

document was marked prosecution's exhibit 

No. 816 and received in evidence.) 

GENERAL VASILIjBV:エ quote brief excerpts frorn 

this report containing the gist of the matter: 

• "On July 1 6 , �1943 at 10 hours the ship 'Dvina', 

under coirjnand of Captain Peer and having a load of 

900 tons of chrome ore and with 30 passenp;ers aboard, 

left Vladivostok on a voyage bound for Portland of 

the U. S. A." 
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I continue to quote on page 2: 

"On July 20 having passed the 'Rock of 

Danger,' the ship was stopped at 11 A. M. by a Japanese 

patrol-boat, and regardless of the protest of the 

captain, she was directed to Port Otomarl." 

エ omit five paragraphs. 

"Peer handed a written protest concerning 

the illegal detention of the ship to the prosecutor 

who did not give him any receipt for it, A copy of 

the protest addressed to the Consul of the U. S. S. R. 

was not accepted by the prosecutor." 

エ continue to quote, page 3: 

"On July 26 the prosecutor called Peer for 

interrogation during which he shouted and was rude to 

him, accusine the latter of violating the Japanese 

territorial waters," 

I omit one and one-half paragraphs. 

"On August 10 a court official came to Peer, 

who was in custody and announced him the sentence of 

the Japanese court, according to v/hich Peer was found 

guilty of unlawful violation of the Japanese territorial 

waters, and sentenced to 100 days imprisonment or fine 

of 2000 Japanese yen. Peer refused to pay the fine, 

stating that the sentence of the court was unlawful, 

and continued to sit in custody. 
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"Tn connection with th Is ths prosecutor called 

Peer for an interrogation nearl；' every day and sub-

jecting him to illtreatnent :nd to indignities cate-

gorically insisted tha"^ the fine be paid and recommend-

ing as a means to rais〕 the rand? to sell a part of 

cargo fuel and the ship's equipire-nt, also agreeing to 

be paid in Soviet cv.rr 2ncy yet* Pi. er ref-used categori-

cally to fulfill these demands. 

"On August 25 the prosecutor set Captain Peer 

free, returning him ell the docimりnts of the ship, and 

permitting the ship 'Dvina' to go on her voyage." 

I continue to quote, page 4 j 

"Thus the Japanese militar.T, court and police 

authorities detained the Soviet ship 'Dvina' without 

any ground for thirty-five days and .iubjected the 

Soviet sailors to indignities 

I shall adduce in evidence t； \e report of 

April 194jS of the Military Prosecutor of the 

Pacific Ocean Area based on the result：^ of the in-

vestigation of the circumstances of det lininp： the 

Soviet trade vessels "Ingul" in the Lapt ruse Strait 

in .IprML" lff43 (document No. 2311). 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms. • 

CLERK OF THE .COURT: Prosecution's document 

No. 2311 will receive exhibit No. 817. 
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GENERAL VASILIEVs I quote brief excerpts frtJm 

I this report; 

"The ship ‘Ingul‘following its course in the 

northern fair-water of the Laperuse Strait, northern 

latitude 45 degrees 49 minutes and eastern longitude 

141 degrees 53 minutes， wns on April 29，194-3> at 

9:42 hours stopped by a Japanese war-ship.“ -

I continue to quote the last r^hrase on page 2: 

"Without giving a special accusation the ship 

IIngult was kept under arrest in the Port ‘Otomari' 

till13；15 hours of June 23,1943, i.e.， 60 days." 

I shall offer in evidence the Reports of March 

19465 of the Military . rosecutor of the Pr.ciflc Ocean 

Area based on the results of the investigation of the 

circumstances of the sinking and capturing of Soviet 

ships 'Kretchet‘, ‘Svirstroy', ‘Sergey Lazo,‘ and 

‘Slmpheropal' in the harbor of Hong Kong In Iecember, 

1941, where these ships were under recondition.エ 

present in evidence a report an the circumstances of 

the sinking of the ship 'Krechet, ‘ document No. 2315". 

THE PRESIDENT; Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF THE COURT.: Prosecution's document 

No. 2315 will receive exhibit No. 818. 

(Whereupon, the document above referred 

to wrs marked prosecution's exhibit No. 818 end 

20. 
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received in evidence.) 

I quote "brief excerpts containing the gist of 

the matter: 

"That at the end of August, 1941, the ship 

'Krechet' arrived at the harbor of Hong Kong to be nut 

under recondition. On December 8� 1 9 4 1 , the reconditioi 

of the ship v;as interrupted becarse of t,he opening 

of hostilities between Jar?an and U.S.A. end Great 

Britain. 

"To avoid the damnging of the ship during 

artillery bombardments of the docks b^ the Japanese 

forces, the ship ‘Kreci.etwss led off to the road-

stead state flag of the Soviet Union being on the stern, 

and other flags printed on her deck and boards. There 

were no other ships belonging to �,ny other country on 
the roEdstead. 

"Lr.te in the afternoon of Lee ember 14,1941, 

artillery bomtiardment of the ship 'Krechet' was begun 

from the Koulun Island, occupied by the Japanese." 

I omit a few lines. 

"The ship wns ablaze and in ebout two hours 

sank. 

"The witnesses: the captain of the ship 

'Krechet' Bazhanov, the senior radio-operator of the 

ship,Pokrytiuk, the mechrnic of the ship 'Svirstroy', 
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lordansky end others estimated thrt there were 34' 

shells discharged by the Japanese armed forces at the 

ship 'Krechet' from the distance of less than hplf a 

mile." 

I quote the last but one paragraph on page 2: 

"During the months thft the crew stayed in 

Hong Kcng they were constantly subjected to indignities 

by the Japanese, who bent them, robbed them of their 

personal things, money in foreign cu-^rency rnd food, 

c.nd as a result of it the crew of the ship 'Krechet' 

were hrlf starving -ind suffered from inanition and 

various diseases.ノ' .： 

エ present in evidence a renort•on the circum-

stances of the sinking of the ship "Svirstroy," ‘ 

document No. 2309. ；: 

THE PRESIDENT“ Adir.itted on the usual tei¥s. 

CLERK OF THE CQTST: Prosecution's document 

No. 2309 will receive exhibit No. 819. 

("Tiereupon, the document above referred 

to was marked prosecution's exhibit No. 819 and 

received in evidence.) 

GENERAL VASILIEV: I quote brief excen^ts; 

"Thft since July, 1941, the ship 'Svirstroy' 

hr.d been overhauled in the docks of the English 

company 'Pnmpy-rock' at Hong Kong, and by the beginning 
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of lecember,1941, she was 80-90 per cent ready. 

"On December 8,1941,セhe Jcpanese troops mede 

a surprise attack on Hong Kong from the north rnd drove 

the English troops defending the town back to the 

Victoria Island. 

"In order to cvoid the Japanese troops mistak-

ing the Soviet ship for sn English or American one, the 

crew led out the ship 'Svirstroy' to the roadstead and 

put her fr.r from the other ships, keeping at a distr.nce 

of 200 meters from the shore ̂  large state flpgs with 

the inscription "The U。S.S.R" on them were painted on 

the roof of the round-house and on the boards. 

"Although it wrs obvious th; t whet the nation-

ality of the ship ‘Svirstroy' was and that she belonged 

to the Merchantile Ivlrrine of the Soviet Union the 

Jr.prnese planes twice bombed her, but without any results 

After this on December 18, the <J?p广:nese forces began 

arti]ユ€ry ranging from the shore batteries and opened 

gun fire on the shin 'Svirstroy。’ Five shells directly-

hit the hull of the ship, considerably damaging her 

and the deck-structures。 

"The 3rd m<3te Kovernikov ?md baker Elagin 

were killed during the bombardment. Stoker Krivoruchko 

was killed and sailor Bochko brdly wounded during one 

of the bombardments,“ 
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I omit a few lines: 

"As the crew of the ship 'Svirstroy' had left 

the ship during the bombardment, they could not hrve 

taken food end personal belongings with them, for c. 

month the Japanese authorities did not allow the Soviet 

sailors to return to the ship assuring them thrt the 

ship was guarded by them. But when the Soviet sailors 

succeeded to get there, thoy found out th., t the Japanese 

flr.g had beerx hoisted on the ship rnd the J^-^sncse 

had given her o trophy number." 

The report concludes by saying thrt the ship 

wns put out of commission and scnk ns a result of the 

d?mr:ge sustained due to the "bombardment end plundering. 

Now I offer in evidence n report of the ship 

’Sergey Lazo', documtnt No. ？ 3 1 0 , 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document 

No. 2310 will receive exhibit No, 820. 

(Whereupon, the document cbove referred 

to was mprked prosecution* s exhibit No,, 820 and 

received in evidence.) 

GENERAL VASILIEV":エ quote brief excerpts: 

"On December 11,1941, the ship ‘Sergey Lazo' 

was twicc bombed by Jopr.nese planes, but the bombs 

missed her. The ship had identifier,tion signs and the 
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st?te flag of the Soviet Union." 

I interrupt the quotation. After the crew, 

-by order of the Japanese authorities, had left the 

ship -- I continue to quote on page 2: 

"The Japanese authorities did not allow the 

crew of the ship ‘ Se.rgey Lazo' to go aboard their ship, 

but it was noticed thet the Japsnose replaced peonle 

on the SoviGt ships evc.ry day m d thrt the Japanese 

flag was hoisted on them." 

エ omit a few lines r.nd then quote the descrip-

tion of condition of the ship when the Soviet crew 

got aboard it: 

"They found out thrt the Jepanose h?5d plundered 

the deck equipment,the skipcr-pilot, buffet, cc-boose 

and fire equipment, the life-rescuing equipment, overall^ 

things pertaining to cultural entertainment, the ship 

radio-strtion, personal belongings of the crew, food, 

details of machines, various tools rnd mc-terinls.“ 

エ call it to the attention of the Court thr-1 

the Japanese authorities not only unlawfully opened 

fire on the Soviet ships ‘ Svirstroy' and ‘ Sc-rgcy Lazo' 

which were in Hong Kong, r.nd captured them, but nlso 

gave to them trophy numbers end hoisted the Japrnese 

flags. 

ェ offer in evidence a report on the ship 
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'Simpheropol,‘document No. 2308. 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted in the usual terms. 

c l e r k of the court: Prosecution's document 

No. 2308 will receive exhibit No, 821. 

(Whereupon, the document cbove referred 

to was marked prosecution's exhibit No. 821 and 

received in evidence.) 

GENERAL 7ASILIEV; I quote ？, brief excerpt 

showing in whrt stcte the ship vc.s at the moment the 

Soviet sailors were allowed to see her 广fter her hrving 

been shelled r.nd used by tho J?pcncse authorities, page 

2 of the English document; 

"'丄'hey found out thnt there was a hole in the 

hull of the ship 'Simpheropol' mede by the nrtillcry 

shell which hcd hit the left upper deck of the bow, 

that the cobin doors were torn away, the writing tables 

broken, the velvet from the sofas cut off. Besides, 

the deck equipment,,the pilot, skiper, buffet caboose 

end fire equipment, the life-rescuing equipment, over-

alls, personal belongings of the crew, things pertaining 

to cultural entertainment, cabin equipment, the ship 

radio station rnd the whole stock of food for the crcw 

were plundered, r.nd some dnmc.ge was deliverately done 

to the engine room." 
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I shall present in evidence--

THE PRESIDENT； Before you go further, it is 

noticed that the ships mentioned in exhibits 8l9 and 

820 are different ships, but the two persons killed 

or wounded on the ships bear the sane . • 

There may be an explanation. 

MR. GOLUNSKYs If the Tribunal please, 

probably there was a mistake in translation, because 

in the Russian document they bear different names. 

THE PRESIDENT; Yes, obviously. 

Have you offered document No. 2308? Admitted 

on the usual terms. 

. CLIRK OF THE COURT; Prosecution's document 

No. 2308 was given exhibit No。 821. 

GENERAL VASILEV; I shall present in evidence 

the affidavit of the witness Budarin, former first mate 

of the Soviet ship"Perekop" who was interrogated on 

March 14，194-6. 

In this affidavit it is testified that in 

December 1941 the Japanese aircraft made pirate attacks 

on the Soviet trade ship"Perekop,"sank that ship, and 

that the crew for a long time was held in Japanese 

captivity, the concitions of 'shich were horrible 

(document No. 230^). 

THE PRESIDENT; Admitted on the usual terms. 
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CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document 

No. 2305 will receive exhibit Ko. 822. 

(YifherGupon, the document above 

referred to was marked prosecution's exhibit 

No, 822, and was received in evidence,) 

GENERAL VASILISV; I quote brief excerpts from 

the affidavit; 

"The ship was not armed; we had neither a gun, 

nor a single machine-gun, there were only a few rifles 

for guarding the ship. It was a cost harmless coininer-

cial timber-carrying ship." 

I pass over to the events of December 17, 

page 3 of the English text: 

"It was about 9 a.m. The aircraft made two 

or three circles and then made for the ship. The 

captain and I watched it through the binoculars and 

when it came nearer, we saw on its wings the Japanese 

‘sun' the rod circles which showed that was a Japanese 

aircraft. The plane was making for the ship, and when 

it was almost directly above it, two bombs were dropped 

and fell off the starboard (near the engine-department), 

but did not inflict any damage." 

I pass over to the events of December I8, page 

of thG English texts 

"I saw 17 twin-engined planes. They fell in 
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two groups and made for the ship, one (there were 9 of 

them) were making for the bow, the other 8 for the 

stern, 

"The identification signs (flags on the holds) 

of our ship were clearly seen, we had hung out our 

identification flags, the ensign was new and flatterod 

in the breeze, its colour and emblem brightly displayed, 

The planes attacked the ship and started bombing and 

machinG-gunnlng at low flight.. 

エ omit a few lines and quote the last but one 

line of this page. 

"Bombs hit the bow, the mate's storeroom 

where 4 men were instantly killed, the hold N 1 and 2. 

Two fires broke out on the bow and on the stern, the 

bridge was destroyed, plaster and all other lifo-

saving equipment was torn av;ay." 

エ omit a few lines, 

"The ship was sinking fast； now the planes 

began dropping bombs not on the ship, but on the men 

in the water who v/ere constantly machinc-gunned at 

the same time, 

"It was in the water that Stokers Onipko, 

Ogarkov, and Engineer Budoyan were killed 

It is seen from the rc-st of the affid-.vit that 

in the course of one and a half years a group of Soviet 
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sailors saved from the sunken ship were first placed 

on セ h e island of Great Natuna, then on the island of 

Borneo, in Singapore, once more on Borneo, again on 

Natuna, and finally again in Singapore, being trans-

ferred hv order of the Japanese authorities and 

enduring all sorts of calamities and indignities. 

Only on June 1,1943, they were allowed to 

return to their country. 

I shall offer in evidence a copy of the 

protest by Levchenko, Captain of the motor vessel 

iMaikop," of July 1,1942, concerning the circumstances 

under which the motor vessel was sunk by the Japanese 

aircraft in December 1941, document No, I889. 

THE PRESIDENT; Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF THE COURT; Prosecution's document 

No. 1889 will receive exhibit No. 823. 

(•Vhereupon, the document above 

referred to was marked prosecution's exhibit 

No. 823， and was rocolved in evidence.) 

GENERAL VASILIEVs I quote brief excanots from 

this document containing the gist of the matter. 

"On 14th December 1941, motor vessel 'Maikop' 

which is the property of the Union of Soviet Socialist 

Republics, sailed under my command, with 12 officers 

(Including myself) and 23 members of the crow (total 
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35 persons), from the port of Sosrabaja (Java) for 

Vladivostok, carrying a cargo of 1994 metric tons of 

liquid cocoanut oil, in accordance with instructions 

received from the Far Eastern Department of U.S.S.R. 

Merchant Marine。 

"On 20th December 1941, at 7*00 a.m., the 

motor vessel 'Maikop' passing 33 miles south 

of Sarangani Islands, heading East-North-Easti At 

about 7.10 a.m., two single-engine airplanes (ono 

hydroplane and one land pl^ne) v/oro sighted, approach-

us from East." 

エ omit a few line s, 

“I could clearly see red circles on tho wings 

and fuselages of said airplanes, which shows thnt they 

were of Japanese nationality. 

"The weather was bright and clear, with good 

visibility and the U.S.S.R. flag was flying over the 

stern of our ship. There is absolutely no doubt that 

our U.S.S.R. flag could be clearly seen and distinguished, 

as well as the name of our ship, nhich v/as painted on 

both sidGS of the 'Kaikop's' bridge. 

"First Attack; Nevertheless, at 7AO a.m., 

one of the airplanes (the land plane) droppod two 

bombs aimed at our ship; tho bombs fell not far from 

our vessel, one about 8 metres and the other atout ベ 
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15 metres from the 'Maikop. 

Further is given セ h e description of several 

bombings； and then I continue to quote the protest, 

on page 4 of the English text, 

"As a result of the above damage, sustained 

by my ship, motor vessel 'Maikop' , through bonibing 

attacks by Japanese pianos, the ship sank completely 

at about 2.00 aom.，26th Lecembor 194-1, near the 

village of Makar." , 

エ shall present in ovldencG the report of the 

Chief Military Prosecutor of the Navr and River Fleet 

of the U.S.S.R., dated February 19,1946, ITo, 0483, 

composed on the basis of data obtained by the irives-

tlgation of the circu -stances of the shipwreck of the 

Soviet tanker"Mariupol"document No. 2072. 

THE PRSSIDMTs Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF THE COURT.? Prosecution's document 

No. 2072 will receive exhibit No, 824. 

(Whereupon, the document above 

referred to was marked prosecution's exhibit 

No. 824， and was received in evidence.) 

GENERAL VAlSILISV;:エ quote brief excerpts 

from this report. 

"The tanker 'Mariupol' was sailing in Nov-

ember 1943 from the United States of America to the 
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Soviet Union vjith a cargo of 8901 tons of Iso-octane. 

I'-hile passing through the First Kuril sky Strait on 

November 14,1943， at 18.04 hours in the territorial 

waters of Japnn near the G ape Kotamari-Saki at the 

point-Lattitudo 50° 4 9 m. north, longitude 156^31 m. 

east, the tanlcer r-̂ n onto rocks, 

"The tanker 'Mariupol' reraninod at the place 

of tlie shipwreck till January 23,194-4, and help being 

not rendered, the ship ana 9700 tons of cargo were 

lost." " 

I omit a few linos, 

"The tankor 'Tuapse' of groat cnrgo capacity 

arrived at the area of tho shipwreck 2 hours after the 

incident had taken place and had actual possibility 

to render holp to tho tanker 'Mariupol' by completely 

unloiding it and towing it from the rocks. 

"To approach the tanker 'Mariupol' tho Soviet 

ships had to get permission from the Japanese govern-

ment. This permission wis givon when 35 days had 

passed since the shipwreck, and the v;recked ship was 

already in a hopeless condition, as its hull was 

damaged by the winter storms." 

I conclude my statement with a presentation 

of several documents proving thnt up till 1945, 

inclasivs, tne Japanese Government, including the 
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defendants TOJO and SHIGEMITSU，repeatedly proclaimed 

their xoyalty to the alliance with Hitlerite Germany, 

The first document on this question I am going 

to presont in evidence is an announcement of the 

Japanese Board of Information, dated January 21,194-3, 

concerning the conclusion of economic agreements 

botvi/een Germany, Italy, and Japan, r.nd the text of 

the irticlo published in the symposium of Offici-xl 

Announcements Concerning Foreign Relations, 1943. 

I present this book for identification, 

documont No. 1210 B & C, nnd the .innouncenent and the 

article in evidence. The book received exhibit No. 50 

for Identificntlon only. 

THE PR3SIDEKT: Admitted on the usual teririS. 

CLERK OF TH3 COURT; Prosecution's document 

No. 1210 B & C will receive exhibit No. 825. 

(Whereupon, the document above 

referred to was mnrked prosecution's exhibit 

No. 825， and was received in evidence.) 

GENERAL VASILIEVs I quote an excerpt from 

the announcement. 

"These agreements possess the snmo period of 

validity ’?s the Tripr\rtite Pact, the purpose of vjhich 

they are to substantiate in the field of economy. In 

this respect they may be considered as the extension 
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and re-inforcement of tha Tripartite Pnct. Jipan, 

Germany and Italy havG constantly boon strengthoning 

their 'politicil cooperation established by the Tri-

partitG Pact and no'v7, bv concluding these agreements, 

they intend to prosecute w.nr agninst their common onecy 

through the formulation of grrnd economic pl',n nnd 

by employing tao total corabinod strength of the two 

gro-^t oconomitf spheres of Gronter Ep.st Asin へ.nd 3urope 

and, r.t the same tine, ‘ to lay thi foundation for 

permanent economic cooperation betvi/eon these spheres 

after tho wnr.'’ 

I quote an excerpt from this article.. 

"Tho economic "^grooraonts v;hich have ^ust boon 

concluded ire ngrcomcnts which give concrete 

expression to the spirit of the Tripartite P?ct in 

tho flold of economy. The f-ict thnt these igreemonts 

have bo en concluded is in itself a cl enson s t r a t i on thit 

the construction of tho new order is bolng further 

substnntiated and th? t oconomic collabor?. tion among 

the three Powers ヮill licncGforth be rendered 

increasingly closor." 

THE PRESIDENT: Ve Hill adjourn not? until 

half past nine tomorro'.v morning. 

C.'fhorGupon, at l600, an nd icurriTnont v/as 

taken until Friday,18 October 1946，.-it 0930.) 
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